Jackie Yates
‘m R d s Chief Executive
v.x'y ea I ng Civic Offices, Bridge Street,
Borough Council Reading RG1 2LU

& 0118 937 3787

Working better with you

To: Councillor Lanzoni (Chair)

Councillors Ayub, Barnett-Ward, Cross,

Eden, Ennis, Gittings, Griffith, Hacker, Direct: & 0118 937 2332
Hornsby-Smith, Keeping, McGrother, e_',rﬁ;’"} “

Nikulina, O'Connell, R Singh and White Committee.Services@reading.gov.uk

3 September 2025
Your contact is: Richard Woodford - Committee Services

NOTICE OF MEETING - TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 11 SEPTEMBER 2025

A meeting of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee will be held on Thursday, 11 September
2025 at 6.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Reading. The Agenda for the meeting is
set out below.

ACTION WARDS Page No
AFFECTED

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 5-18
3. PREVIOUS DECISIONS 19 - 20

4, QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
AND COUNCILLORS

Questions submitted pursuant to Standing Order 36
in relation to matters falling within the Sub-
Committee’s Powers & Duties which have been
submitted in writing and received by the Head of
Legal & Democratic Services no later than four clear
working days before the meeting.

5. PETITIONS

To receive petitions on traffic management matters
submitted in accordance with the Sub-Committee’s
Terms of Reference.

CIVIC OFFICES EMERGENCY EVACUATION: If an alarm sounds, leave by the nearest fire exit quickly and calmly
and assemble on the corner of Bridge Street and Fobney Street. You will be advised when it is safe to re-enter the
building.



5(a) Petition Receipt & Response - Last
Crumb Junction

To report to the Sub-Committee the receipt
of a petition requesting the Council to install
controlled pedestrian crossing facilities at
the junction of Westfield Road, Peppard
Road, Prospect Street and Henley Road,
known locally as the “Last Crumb” Junction.

PETITION RESPONSE - WOKINGHAM ROAD
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING

A report providing the Sub-Committee with officer
recommendations in response to the written petition
requesting the Council introduce a pedestrian
crossing on Wokingham Road, near to the Hamilton
Road bus stop.

WAITING RESTRICTION REVIEW PROGRAMME

(@) 2024B Proposals for Statutory Consultation

(b) Recommended Removal of Fixed Enforcement
Observation Periods

A report seeking approval for Officers to undertake
statutory consultation for recommended
new/alterations to waiting restrictions as part of the
2024B programme. These proposals aim to address
the issues raised in the initial list of requests, which
were reported to and agreed for investigation by the
Sub-Committee at their meeting in September 2024.

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER RECTIFICATION -
UPDATE

A report informing the Sub-Committee that the
statutory consultation agreed at the meeting in June
2025 for rectifying TRO issues discovered within the
Town Centre Red Route order has been carried out
and highlighting an issue that has been discovered
and, since rectified, with non-compliant yellow-line
restrictions on Durham Close.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

CAVERSHAM

PARK

BOROUGHWIDE

BOROUGHWIDE

21 -26

27 - 30

31-88

89 -104



10.

The following motion will be moved by the Chair:

“That, pursuant to Section 100A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) members of the
press and public be excluded during consideration of
the following item on the agenda, as it is likely that
there would be disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the relevant Paragraphs of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of that Act”

APPLICATIONS FOR DISCRETIONARY PARKING
PERMITS

To consider appeals against the refusal of applications
for the issue of discretionary parking permits.

BOROUGHWIDE

105 - 166



WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note that this meeting may be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast via the Council's
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act. Data
collected during a webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy.

Members of the public seated in the public gallery will not ordinarily be filmed by the automated
camera system. However, please be aware that by moving forward of the pillar, or in the unlikely
event of a technical malfunction or other unforeseen circumstances, your image may be captured.
Therefore, by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.

Members of the public who participate in the meeting will be able to speak at an on-camera or off-
camera microphone, according to their preference.

Please speak to a member of staff if you have any queries or concerns.




TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTEAQEHJQ@JI‘?m 2

Present: Councillors Lanzoni (Chair), Ayub, Barnett-Ward, Cross, Eden,
Ennis, Gittings, Griffith, Hacker, Hornsby-Smith, Keeping,
McGrother, Nikulina, O’Connell, R Singh and White.

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Ayub and Barnett-Ward declared interests in item 6(a), on the grounds that they
had signed the petition requesting that a pedestrian crossing be installed on Wokingham Road.

2. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of 6 March 2025 were confirmed as a correct record and signed
by the Chair.

3. PREVIOUS DELEGATED DECISIONS
The Sub-Committee received the list of delegated decisions from previous meetings.
4, MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES
The Minutes of the following meeting were received:
e Reading Cycle Forum — 12 February 2025.
5. QUESTIONS

A question on the following matter was submitted, and answered by the Lead Councillor for
Climate Strategy and Transport on behalf of the Chair:

Questioner Subject

Councillor Nikulina Tackling Whitley Street Cycle Lane Problems

(The full text of the question and reply was made available on the Reading Borough Council
website).

6. PETITIONS
(a)  Petition — Wokingham Road Crossing

The Sub-Committee received a report on the receipt of a petition that had been received
requesting that a pedestrian crossing be installed on Wokingham Road, near to the junction
with Hamilton Road.

The report stated that on 18 May 2025 a petition had been submitted to the Council that had
counted indications of support from 180 individuals. The full petition read as follows:

“We the undersigned request that a safe crossing be installed on Wokingham Rd close
to the Hamilton Road bus stop (by the cemetery wall).

Page 5



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

Many residents have expressed their concerns about the dangers of crossing there. In
particular elderly, disabled people and those with young children find it challenging to
cross the road when high volumes of cars travel at speed. A safe crossing would be a
clear signal to drivers that pedestrians are trying to cross the road. We urge you to
implement this important measure for the benefit of the people of Park Ward.”

The report explained that at the desired location, Wokingham Road, was a 30mph street, with
two westbound traffic lanes (a bus lane and a general traffic lane) and an eastbound general
traffic lane with an advisory cycle lane alongside. Both sides of the road had Red Route ‘no
stopping at any time’ restrictions in place, with the cemetery on the northern side and
residential properties, some of which had off-street parking access, on the southern side.

The report recommended that officers considered the requested change and undertook a high
level desktop study in order to make recommendations to a future meeting. It was likely that
such a requested change would need to be considered for entry on the Council’s regularly
reported ‘Requests for Traffic Management Measures’ as there was currently no identified
funding or staffing resource to commence development of a scheme at the current time.

At the invitation of the Chair the petition organiser, Electra Colios, addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the petitioners.

At the invitation of the Chair Brian Oatway also addressed the Sub-Committee in support of
the petition.

Resolved -
(1)  That the report be noted;

(2) That officers consider the contents of the petition and make their
recommendations in a petition response report to be submitted to a future
meeting;

(3) That no public enquiry be held into the proposals.

(Councillors Ayub and Barnett-Ward declared an interest in the above item on the grounds that
they had signed the petition. They took no part in the discussion or decision making.)

(b)  Petition — Southcote School Street

Further to Minute 35 of the previous meeting, the Sub-Committee received a report on the
receipt of a petition that had been received requesting the establishment of a School Street for
Southcote Primary School.

The report explained that a petition response report that had been submitted to the previous
meeting, had explained the potential benefits of a School Street at this location and officers
had carried out the additional recommended action of writing to the Head Teacher to inform
them of the receipt of that petition and to encourage engagement with the Council in developing
a School Street project.

Page 6



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

The report stated that on 28 May 2025 a petition had been formally submitted to the Council
containing indications of support from 104 individuals. The petition had been hosted online
and had been created on 7 September 2024. The full petition read as follows:

“I'm a resident of Southcote, Reading, UK, and | feel it's high time we addressed a
growing concern in our community—the traffic situation near Southcote Primary School,
particularly during drop-off and pick-up times. We find it nearly impossible to get in and
out of our driveways on Silchester Road and Shepley Drive and it's become a daily
struggle. Numerous near misses have been recorded, an alarming sign of the dangers
that exist.

Sadly, the challenge has been amplified by the lack of support from the school. The
ample car park that was originally built to be a drop-off point for parents remains off-
limits. Instead, parents are forced to drop off children along the one-way road, causing
a logjam that takes up to 15 minutes to clear.

School Streets, implemented successfully in other parts of the UK, have been shown to
significantly reduce traffic congestion around schools and create a safer environment
for all. They prioritise walking and cycling during school start and end times, making
drop off and pick up less dangerous and congested.

We believe a School Street for Southcote Primary School would alleviate this ongoing
issue, freeing our driveways and reducing near misses significantly, making the area
safer for both residents and pupils. We ask the local council and school management
to take into consideration our concerns and create a safer, smoother traffic system for
the benefit of all.

We appeal to you, our fellow residents, parents and local community members to
support this petition. Let's collectively ask for the establishment of a School Street for
Southcote Primary School, to ensure the safety and wellbeing of our children and our
community. Please sign this petition and help us make our voices heard.”

The report explained that officers were aware of some of the difficulties that some parents
were causing for local residents at school drop-off and pick-up times and the report that had
been submitted to the previous meeting had summarised some of the measures that had been
introduced, or had been proposed, to try and mitigate these issues.

The School Street initiative currently required schools to engage with and apply to implement
a scheme. There was a level of officer support that could be provided in the development of
a scheme but, currently the implementation and operation required volunteers from the school
and local community to marshal the closure and facilitate legitimate access/egress. It was
appreciated that finding and retaining volunteer marshals could be challenging and the Council
remained appreciative of those who were currently supporting schemes. Officers were
reviewing potential options that could support such initiatives but, these would need to be
considered in due course. Currently, the Council was reliant on the school and community to
apply and support a scheme and was not in a position to instruct or impose a scheme on a
school. It was not a restriction that was currently considered feasible for imposing on a school
and the surrounding streets, therefore, officers did not consider that there were currently any
further actions that they could take to address the request set out in the petition.

Page 7



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

At the invitation of the Chair the petition organiser, Abba Lucas, addressed the Sub-Committee
on behalf of the petitioners.

The Sub-Committee discussed the report and Councillor Ennis proposed that recommendation
(2) be changed so that he, Ward Councillors and officers were charged with continuing the
dialogue with the school and local residents with the aim of finding a safe solution to the traffic
situation near Southcote Primary School.

Resolved -
(1)  That the report be noted;

(2) That Councillor Ennis, Ward Councillors and officers be charged with
continuing the engagement with the school, to invite a School Street
application, remain available to advise on that application with the aim of
finding a safe solution to the traffic situation near Southcote Primary
School;

(3) That no public enquiry be held into the proposals.
(c) Petition — Changes to Road-side Parking, Wokingham Road

The Sub-Committee considered a petition that had been received requesting changes to road-
side parking on Wokingham Road.

The petition had counted indications of support from 75 individuals. The full petition read as
follows:

‘I am writing on behalf of the congregation of Earley Christian Fellowship (ECF), 153
Wokingham Road, Earley to express our dismay at the recent changes to the road-side
parking on Wokingham Road. ECF has been based at 153 for over 40 years. For all
this time, the church has relied on, and been able to park freely on Wokingham Road,
albeit in the last 5 years subject to a 2 hour un-charged time limit and small charge
thereafter.

The charging structure for Wokingham Road was carefully considered by the TMSC in
2019/20, in direct response to representations received (including from ECF) about the
proposed metering. Issues considered by Committee at that time included the 'Pay to
Pray' debate; the Council’s requirement to comply with the Equality Act 2010 (and hence
any proposal not being discriminatory to persons of protected characteristics (eg by way
of religion, age (young or old), disability or pregnancy)) and the inherent importance to
ECF of an adequate free parking period on Wokingham Road. The tariff arrived at at
that time was a 2 hour un-charged period, followed by 50p per hour thereafter. For most
week-day activities at ECF, the 2 hour free period was sufficient for parking. On a
Sunday morning however, when people are typically at ECF for longer, 3 hours used to
cost 50p. This has now risen to £2.70 (including 20p RingGo admin charge) - a
whopping 440% increase! The removal of the 2 hour free period and extortionate hike
in price is completely contrary to the careful consideration by this Committee in 2019/20
of the effect of the tariff on ECF. Many of the ECF congregation do walk, cycle or use
the bus to come to services and events, but those who are older, have young families
or travel from further afield rely on there being easily accessible parking nearby without

4
Page 8



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

prohibitive cost. Removal of the 2 hour free period and huge increase in price could
therefore be considered indirect discrimination under the Equality Act 2010 (indirect
discrimination can occur when there is a rule or policy that applies to everyone but
disadvantages a person with a particular protected characteristic).

Furthermore, the disabling of the meters and the consequent requirement to use an app
to park really is discriminatory against those without smartphones, those who aren't tech
savwvy (such as the elderly), or those who aren't local (eqg if we have a funeral or
wedding).

We would be grateful therefore if the meters on Wokingham Road could be returned to
use and the previous tariff reinstated.”

At the invitation of the Chair the petition organiser, Bernadette Cowling, addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the petitioners.

Councillor Ennis, Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport, gave the following
response to the petition:

“The petition from the Earley Christian Fellowship (ECF) cites a previous decision by
the Transport Management Sub Committee (TMSC) in 2019/20 and the Equalities Act
2010.

The decision by the committee not to infroduce charges at that time was in line with
many other areas where there was limited free parking. The changes in the tariff
structure in January 2024 removed the majority of these free periods. The change now
brings the area into line with the rest of the borough. As background the free period in
both Dunstall Place and Recreation Road was removed as part of the annual review of
fees and charges. A petition from residents and businesses in the area around the car
parks, protesting the removal of the free period was submitted to TMSC. Both petitions
were rejected

The parking charge is now consistent across the borough treating all people and all
religious groups in the same way. It would be difficult to provide a different approach at
Wokingham road to support the ECF as this could be viewed as favouring one religious
group over another.

As part of a review of the number and location of pay and display machines, it has been
decided to install a card only pay and display machine close to the ECF. This will negate
the need to use the Ring Go service, thereby avoiding the 20p convenience charge.

The Council’s overall move towards creating a net zero borough is not supported by
free parking, even for a limited period. Pay and display charges are an effective and
proven tool in encouraging behaviour change and by maintaining a free parking period,
travellers would be encouraged to continue to use their vehicles, which is not something
the Council wishes to encourage.”

The Sub-Committee discussed the petition and it was agreed that further investigation was
needed particularly in relation to free parking and unification of parking in the area.

5
Page 9



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

Resolved — That the petition be noted.

7. WOODLEY ACTIVE TRAVEL SCHEME: PALMER PARK AVENUE PARALLEL
CROSSING - CONSULTATION RESULTS

Further to Minute 24 of the meeting held on 27 November 2024, the Sub-Committee
considered a report that informed them of the results of the statutory consultation process for
the proposed changes on Palmer Park Avenue and Wykeham Road junction as part of the
scheme by Wokingham Borough Council. A plan of the Palmer Park Avenue and Wykeham
Road crossing facilities was attached to the report at Appendix 1 and the consultation results
were attached to the report at Appendix 2.

The report explained that the entire scheme consisted of the provision of a new cycle route
connecting Woodly Town Centre and Palmer Park, including an upgrade to the existing shared
footway/cycleway sections, junction upgrades and priority crossing points. Part of Woodlands
Avenue was to be reduced to 20mph, with Palmerston Road and Culver Lane proposed to
form part of a wider 20mph zone which was being delivered as a separate scheme. Church
Road was to remain at 30pmh. The section of the scheme with Reading Borough consisted
of the provision of a new parallel crossing over Palmer Park Avenue at the entrance to Palmer
Park and improved crossing facilities, including a raised table and crossing at the Wykeham
Road junction with Palmer Park Avenue. The pavement on the south side of Culver Lane,
between its junction with Wykeham Road and the Borough boundary was also to be converted
to shared space for pedestrians and cycles. The section of the scheme within the Borough
had been developed with the engagement and feedback from Transport Officers and a
statutory consultation had been carried out between 30 January and 28 February 2025. A
total of 27 public responses had been received to the consultation, with 23 supportive of the
scheme and four unsupportive. There had been no objections to the scheme from Thames
Valley Police.

Resolved -
(1)  That the report and the results of the consultation be noted;
(2) That the implementation of the proposed measures be approved;

(3) That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services be granted
authority to make the Traffic Regulation Order;

(4) That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.
8. TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER RECTIFICATION - UPDATE

Further to Minute 37 of the previous meeting, the Sub-Committee received a report that
informed them of progress and decision making in respect of the TRO rectification process.
The following Appendices were attached to the report:

Appendix 1 Drawings pack to highlight the locations and restrictions affected,
accompanying the table in Section 3.6, as reported to Council in October
2024;

Appendix 2 Consultation feedback received for TRO 7 (London Road);

6
Page 10



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

Appendix 3 Consultation feedback received for TRO 8 (Hosier Street & St Marys
Butts);

Appendix 4 Consultation feedback received for TRO 9 (A33 Bus Lanes);

Appendix 5 Consultation feedback received for TRO 10 (Redlands Road);

Appendix 6 Drawings pack to highlight the locations affected by the new items referred
in Section 3.11 of the report.

The report highlighted a further three TRO issues that had since been discovered, for which
officers were seeking agreement to carry out the statutory consultation processes on two of
them so that the TROs might be brought back into compliance and enforcement recommenced
with the restrictions presented on street. These issues affected the southbound bus lane on
London Street, split bays within the town centre and a limited waiting bay on Armour Road.

With regard to the Digital TRO Project the report explained that officers were awaiting the
outcome of a recent Government consultation regarding the potential implementation of their
new regulations and it was anticipated that this would not happen until October 2025 at the
earliest. This incoming legislation continued to inform the delivery order/priority of the overall
project. The software supplier providing the TRO management suite had been appointed and
officers were in the early stages of onboarding, process and delivery mapping.

Resolved -
(1)  That the report be noted;

(2) That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services be granted
authority to undertake statutory consultations to address the Traffic
Regulation Order issues identified and recommendations proposed in item
3.11 of the report, in accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996;

(3) That the Assistant Director of Environment and Commercial Services be
granted authority to make minor amendments to any proposals to be
consulted, in consultation with the Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy
and Transport and the Chair of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee;

(4) That subject to no objections being received, the Assistant Director of
Legal and Democratic Services be granted authority to make the Traffic
Regulation Orders;

(5) That any objection(s) received during the statutory advertisement be
submitted to a future meeting;

(6) That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.

9. WAITING RESTRICTION REVIEW - 2024A RESULTS OF STATUTORY
CONSULTATION

The Sub-Committee received a report informing them of objections that had resulted from the

statutory consultation for the agreed proposals that had formed the 2024A Waiting Restriction
Review Programme. Objections and other feedback that had been received to the statutory

7
Page 11



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

consultation for the 2024A programme and the advertised drawings relating to those proposals
were attached to the report at Appendix 1.

The report explained that at the meeting on 11 September 2024 (Minute 17 refers) a list of
requests for potential inclusion into the 2024B Programme had been submitted and the Sub-
Committee had agreed the locations that should be investigated for potential treatment. The
officer resource for carrying out this work had been occupied with other high priority work,
particularly the TRO Rectification Project, see Minute 7 above. While some work had
commenced, it was not sufficiently advanced for submitting to this meeting and it was expected
that scheme recommendations would be submitted to the September 2025 meeting. Initial
recommendations would be shared with Ward Councillors for comment ahead of that meeting
as usual.

Resolved —
(1)  That the report be noted;

(2) That the following proposals made under the waiting restriction review
2024A programme, as set out in Appendices 1, attached to the report, be
implemented, amended or removed from the programme, subject to any
valid and substantive objections being received, as follows:

Bembridge Place — Implement as advertised,;
Northcourt Avenue — Remove from the programme;
Oak Tree Road - Implement as advertised;

Armour Road - Officer comments noted;
Newcastle Road — Implement as advertised;
Addison Road — Remove from the programme;
Westwood Road — Implement as advertised,;
Childrey Way — Remove from the programme;

(3) That should any further valid written/postal objections be received after
this meeting, provided they were sent within the statutory consultation
period, the Executive Director of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood
Services, in consultation with the Assistant Director of Legal and
Democratic Services, the Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and
Transport and the Chair of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee
consider these and make a decision regarding the implementation, or
otherwise, of the scheme;

(4) Thatthe Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised
to make and seal the resultant Traffic Regulation Order;

(5) That respondents to the statutory consultation be informed of the
decisions of the Sub-Committee accordingly, following publication of the
agreed minutes of the meeting;

(6) That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.
10. NORTHCOURT AVENUE CIL — RESULTS OF STATUTORY CONSULTATION

8
Page 12



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

Further to Minute 18 of the meeting held on 11 September 2024, the Sub-Committee received
a report that provided the Sub-Committee with the results of the Statutory Consultation for
traffic calming and speed reduction proposals on Northcourt Avenue and Wellington Avenue.
The following Appendices were attached to the report:

Appendix 1 Objections and other feedback that had been received to the statutory
consultation — combining feedback to the 20mph and speed hump
consultations;

Appendix 2  Drawings for the proposed scheme.

The report explained that due to the different legal processes required to consult on spend limit
changes and on the installation of speed humps/tables, there had been two separate
consultations that had been carried out concurrently on the scheme between 15 May and 6
June 2025.

Resolved -
(1)  That the report be noted;

(2) That having considered the feedback, set out in Appendix 1 attached to the
report, the Northcourt Avenue Traffic Calming scheme be implemented,
subject to resolution (3) below and to any valid and substantive objections
being received;

(3) That should any further written/postal objections be received after this
meeting, provided they were sent within the statutory consultation period,
the Executive Director of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services,
in consultation with the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic
Services, the Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport and the
Chair of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee consider these and make
a decision regarding the implementation, or otherwise, of the scheme;

(4) Thatthe Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised
to seal the resultant Traffic Regulation Order (Speed Limit Order);

(5) That respondents to the statutory consultations be informed of the
decisions of the Sub-Committee accordingly, following publication of the
agreed minutes of the meeting;

(6) That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.
11. RESIDENTS PARKING SCHEME REVIEW INCLUDING DIGITAL VISITOR PERMITS

The Sub-Committee considered a report that sought to amend the Permit Management Rules
to create a standardised approach to simplify the number of permits, and following the results
of the digital parking permit trial, to recommend the adoption of digital permits and visitor
permits Boroughwide from October 2025. The following Appendices were attached to the
report:

Appendix 1 Feedback from Residents
Appendix 2 Breakdown of Visitor permit sessions used per month

9
Page 13



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

Appendix 3  List of Healthcare Professions

Appendix4  Table 2 - Digital Visitor Permit Packs and Physical Books issued in
2024/2025

Appendix 5  Table 3 - Number of Sessions booked, including session duration

The report explained that there were 19 Resident Parking Zones across the Borough which
provided spaces on-street for households to find parking near their homes and the report
included a table that set out the permits that had been issued in 2024/2025. At the meeting
on 13 September 2023 (Minute 23 refers) the start of a trial of digital permits had been agreed
with the exception of Visitor Permits in zone 02R and a trial of digital visitor permits had been
on going in permit zone 02R since 13 March 2024.

The residents in 02R, as part of the trial, were entitled to two free packs and up to five charged
packs of visitor permits per year, each pack contained 120 sessions and each session was for
one hour. In summary, residents were provided with 240 free hours of parking for visitors and
the ability to buy up to 600 additional hours of visitor time. A resident could book a session
from their pack, with the minimum being one session/hour. Once a session had been booked,
the session(s) were deducted from their pack. This was all managed from their online account.

Residents had been notified of the digital trial, including the visitor pack trial, and a feedback
form had been provided. To date 12 responses had been received from residents under the
trial that had been held over the previous 12 months. There were 665 permits in zone 02R.

The report stated that the digital scheme was working well, with generally positive feedback.
It had allowed for more efficient working practices that supported stronger compliance, and the
visitor permit scheme was proving to be more suited to customer needs, with shorter stays
possible, as well as being easier to access. Therefore, the recommendation was to roll out
the Digital Visitor Permit packs to the other permit zones along with visitor permits for Business,
Charity and other discretionary visitor permit types. The inclusion of these permits in the digital
rollout would simplify the process for obtaining visitor permits and would not restrict the
applicant to times when the Council offices were open, thereby providing greater flexibility for
customers.

The option to have physical visitor permits would be retained for those residents who were
unable to utilise the digital version. However, these books of visitor permits would not be
available to purchase online through the portal, and requests would need to be made by post
or email.

The report explained that it was recommended to roll out digital visitor permits Boroughwide in
October 2025 to allow officers time to communicate and amend back-office systems and, as
with the trial of Digital Visitor Permits in 02R, a communication and roll-out plan would be drawn

up.
The report detailed other proposed changes to the following sections of Permit Scheme:

Motorcycle Parking;

Council Pool Vehicles;

Nanny, Houseboat and Foreign Vehicle Permits
Teachers Permits;

Healthcare Professional Permits;

10
Page 14



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

e Update of the Permit Scheme Rules and Definitions.

Resolved —

(1)

(2)

)

That the following the trial of Digital Permits and Visitor Permits in Zone
02R, their rolling out Boroughwide and the rolling out Boroughwide of
digital Business, Charity and Discretionary permits, be agreed;

That the following amendments be made to the permit scheme:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Motorcycles are included in the permit scheme but are charged for
at the first permit rate regardless of other vehicles owned,;

Reading Borough Council pool vehicles are included in the scheme;

Houseboats, Nanny and Foreign Registered vehicle permits are
removed from the permit scheme due to low take up and the creation
of a new General Discretionary permit;

Healthcare Professional Permits are updated to remove the list of
professions and that permits are issued on the basis they visit
patients in their homes;

Teachers permits be renamed educational establishment permits
and be limited to the current demand as set out in Table 4 at
paragraph 3.29 allowing the schools to determine the recipients of
those permits charged at resident rates;

Schools applying for permits must have a current School Travel
plan;

The Director of Finance be authorised to determine the charges for
permits relating to Reading Borough Council vehicles or staff;

That the permit scheme rules and definitions be updated as per the above
agreed amendments.

12. EMISSIONS BASED CHARGING

The Sub-Committee considered a report that sought to modernise pay and display parking and
introduce emissions-based charging for parking and residents permits across the Borough in
support of wider policy objectives around air quality, health and climate. The following
appendices were attached to the report:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6
Appendix 7

Tariff structure including emissions charges

On street permits charging structure

Climate Impact Assessment

Equality Impact Assessment

Green House Gas Emissions by Sector (UK 2021)
Responses to Emissions-Based Charging consultation
Direct emails to Parking Manager

11
Page 15



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

The report explained that a report on changes to Parking Services had been submitted to
Policy Committee on 20 January 2025 (Minute 52 refers) that set out proposals to introduce
emissions-based charging for on and off-street parking, resident and all other parking permits
across the Borough. The proposal to introduce Emissions-Based Charging (EBC) was
expected to elicit strong opinions and, to gauge support, an informal consultation has been
conducted in March 2025. Nearly 10,000 residential properties, as well as businesses and
other permit holders affected had had the opportunity to respond of which 275 had done so.
64% of respondents had strongly agreed or agreed that they were concerned about the effects
of air quality on the health of their children or family and a similar number (61.8%) had been
concerned about the impact on their own health. In summary, a ratio of almost 2 to 1 had
expressed concern about the impact of air quality on not only their health but, also on the
health of their family. There had been strong opposition to linking EBC to permits, with 70%
disagreeing and strongly disagreeing when asked if permit parking charges should be linked
to CO2 and NOx emission levels of the vehicle. There were also a high number of responses
that suggested the proposals would impact negatively on lower income households. Positively,
while 73% had said the proposals were unlikely to change their travel behaviour, a significant
proportion (20%) had said it would, meaning that potentially this approach could result in a
significant shift in modal choice and result in positive air quality impacts.

The report stated that with regard to Pay and Display Tariffs, the planned introduction of new
machines that would record Vehicle Registration Mark (VRM), meant there was an opportunity
to link to Driver and Vehicle Licencing Agency (DVLA) data on tail pipe emissions. Data on
vehicle type was already collected through the RingGo pay by phone system and the data
enabled the Service to identify a vehicle fuel type. This information could be used to model a
charging regime targeted at the most polluting vehicles with the primary objective being to
encourage those with the most polluting vehicles to choose other modes of transport. RingGo
data for Reading had shown that 88% of all vehicles using the parking app were either petrol
or diesel and only a small percentage (6%) were Ultra Low Emission Vehicles. The proposal
was that a percentage charge was added to on-street parking tariffs for the most polluting
vehicles, based on the addition of 20% for petrol and 25% for diesel on a sliding scale of
charging based on carbon dioxide emissions. Westminster and Lambeth Councils had both
recently introduced emissions-based charging schemes; Westminster had levied 67% on
diesels and a range of 15% to 100% on non-diesels. Lambeth had levied a 75% charge on
diesel vehicles. The Council had started at a lower percentage uplift but, this would be subject
to future review to continue encouraging and incentivising less polluting vehicles.

Recognising the tail pipe emission benefits of Electric Vehicles meant that they would not pay
any additional tariff to encourage take up and reflect the delivery programme of the Council’s
EV Strategy, which would further support sustainable growth. As more data was gathered
about the types of vehicles using the parking service, a review of tariffs would be carried out
two years after the scheme had been introduced to address any imbalances within the system.

The report stated that it was proposed to introduce emissions-based charging in October 2025,
following roll out of the new machines and completion of the necessary legal processes.

Finally, with regard to permits, the report stated that in 2024/25 the Council had issued 30,648
permits of all types. Post Covid, there had been a positive shift in the reduction of second
vehicle permits issued to residents however, analysis of vehicle emissions had indicated a
slow transition to lower emissions vehicles. Whilst affordability and availability were a clear
factor in residents’ choice to transition to ultra-low emissions vehicles, the impact on air quality,

12
Page 16



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

particularly in densely packed town centre locations, was significant. It was therefore proposed
to introduce an Emission Based Charging regime as set out in Appendix 2 attached to the
report.

Resolved —

(1)  That subject to statutory consultation, the Executive Director of Economic
Growth and Neighbourhood Services, in consultation with Lead Councillor
for Climate Strategy and Transport and Assistant Director Legal and
Democratic Services, be granted authority to introduce emissions-based
charging for:

(a) On street pay and display;
(b) Resident parking permits and all other parking permits;

(2) That subject to no objections being received, the Assistant Director of
Legal and Democratic Services be granted authority to make:

(@) The Traffic Regulation Order for the introduction of emissions-based
charging for on street pay and display;

(b) The Traffic Regulation Order for the introduction of emissions-based
charging for Resident parking permits and all other parking permits;

(3) That should formal objections be received officers submit a report to a
future meeting of the Sub-Committee for consideration.

13. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Resolved —

That, pursuant to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)
members of the press and public be excluded during consideration of the item
below, as it was likely that there would be disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of that Act.

14. APPLICATIONS FOR DISCRETIONARY PARKING PERMITS

The Sub-Committee received a report giving details of the background to the decisions to
refuse applications for Discretionary Parking Permits from four applicants who had
subsequently appealed against these decisions.

Resolved —

(1) That, with regard to application 2, a temporary, 12-month, second
discretionary resident permit be issued for permit zone 01R, personal to
the applicant;

(2) That, with regard to application 4, a first discretionary resident permit be

issued, personal to the applicant and charged at the standard rate;

13
Page 17



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES - 11 JUNE 2025

(3) That the Executive Director for Economic Growth and Neighbourhood
Services’ decision to refuse applications 1 and 3 be upheld.

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2).

(The meeting started at 6.30 pm and finished at 9.09 pm).

14
Page 18



6T abed

Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS

Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Directorate Date of

meeting
27/11/24 25

27/11/24 25

27/11/24 25

11/06/25 7

11/06/25 8

11/06/25 8

11/06/25 8

Minute
number

Item title

Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP) Update Report

Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP) Update Report

Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP) Update Report

WOODLEY ACTIVE TRAVEL
SCHEME: PALMER PARK AVENUE
PARALLEL CROSSING -
CONSULTATION RESULTS
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
RECTIFICATION - UPDATE

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
RECTIFICATION - UPDATE

Decision Officer delegated to

That the Executive Director of Economic Growth and Exec Director of Economic

Neighbourhood Services in consultation with the Assistant Growth and Neighbourhood

Director of Legal and Democratic Services, the Lead Services

Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport and the

Chair of the Sub Committee be granted authority to make

minor amendments to any of the proposals if required

prior to the implementation of any of the traffic regulation

orders

That that subject to no objections being received the AD of Legal & Democratic
Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services be Services/Monitoring
authorised to make the Traffic Regulation Orders in Officer/Returning Officer
accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic Orders
Procedure (England and Wales) Regulations 1996, and no
public inquiry be held into the proposal

That that subject to the outcome of the Southampton
Street (Oracle roundabout) statutory consultation, the
Executive Director of Economic Growth and Services
Neighbourhood Services be granted authority to proceed

with either of the designs proposed, subject to the budget

available

That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic

Services be granted authority to make the Traffic

Regulation Order

Exec Director of Economic

That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic
Services be granted authority to undertake statutory
consultations to address the Traffic Regulation Order
issues identified and recommendations proposed in item
3.11 of the report, in accordance with the Local Authorities
Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales)
Regulations 1996

That the Assistant Director of Environment and Assistant Director of
Commercial Services be granted authority to make minor Environmental and
amendments to any proposals to be consulted, in Commercial Services
consultation with the Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy

and Transport and the Chair of the Traffic Management

Sub-Committee

That subject to no objections being received, the Assistant AD of Legal & Democratic
Director of Legal and Democratic Services be granted Services/Monitoring
authority to make the Traffic Regulation Orders Officer/Returning Officer

AD of Legal & Democratic
Services/Monitoring
Officer/Returning Officer

Growth and Neighbourhood

Lead Councillor
portfolio

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Climate Strategy and

Transport

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Climate Strategy and
Transport

Expected timescale for decision

September 2025

September 2025

September 2025

¢ wa)| epusby



0z abed

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

Traffic Management Sub- DEGNS
Committee

11/06/25 9

11/06/25 9

11/06/25 10

11/06/25 10

11/06/25 12

WAITING RESTRICTION REVIEW -
2024A RESULTS OF STATUTORY
CONSULTATION

NORTHCOURT AVENUE CIL -
RESULTS OF STATUTORY
CONSULTATION

NORTHCOURT AVENUE CIL -
RESULTS OF STATUTORY
CONSULTATION

EMISSIONS BASED CHARGING

That should any further valid written/postal objections be  Exec Director of Economic  Climate Strategy and
received after this meeting, provided they were sent within Growth and Neighbourhood Transport

the statutory consultation period, the Executive Director of Services

Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services, in

consultation with the Assistant Director of Legal and

Democratic Services, the Lead Councillor for Climate

Strategy and Transport and the Chair of the Traffic

Management Sub-Committee consider these and make a

decision regarding the implementation, or otherwise, of

the scheme

That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic AD of Legal & Democratic  Climate Strategy and
Services be authorised to make and seal the resultant Services/Monitoring Transport

Traffic Regulation Order Officer/Returning Officer

That should any further written/postal objections be Exec Director of Economic  Climate Strategy and

received after this meeting, provided they were sent within Growth and Neighbourhood Transport
the statutory consultation period, the Executive Director of Services

Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services, in

consultation with the Assistant Director of Legal and

Democratic Services, the Lead Councillor for Climate

Strategy and Transport and the Chair of the Traffic

Management Sub-Committee consider these and make a

decision regarding the implementation, or otherwise, of

the scheme

That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic AD of Legal & Democratic  Climate Strategy and
Services be authorised to seal the resultant Traffic Services/Monitoring Transport

Regulation Order (Speed Limit Order); Officer/Returning Officer

That subject to statutory consultation, the Executive Exec Director of Economic  Climate Strategy and
Director of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Growth and Neighbourhood Transport

Services, in consultation with Lead Councillor for Climate Services
Strategy and Transport and Assistant Director Legal and

Democratic Services, be granted authority to introduce
emissions-based charging for:

(a)®n street pay and display;

(b)Resident parking permits and all other parking permits;



Agenda Item 5(a)

Lo emesenens s @ Reading

Borough Council
11 September 2025 Working better with you
Title Petition Receipt & Response — Last Crumb Junction

Purpose of the report To make a decision

Report status Public report

Executive Director/
Statutory Officer
Commissioning Report

Emma Gee, Executive Director Economic Growth and
Neighbourhood Services

Report author Robert Conway, Network Management Technician

Lead Councillor Clir John Ennis, Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport

Council priority

Deliver a sustainable & healthy environment & reduce Reading's
carbon footprint

Recommendations

1. That the Sub-Committee notes the content of this report.

2. That the Sub-Committee notes and agrees the officer response
in Sections 3.3 — 3.5.

3. That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.

1.1.

1.2.

3.1.

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to inform the Sub-Committee of a petition that has been
received requesting the installation of controlled pedestrian crossing facilities at the
junction of Westfield Road, Peppard Road, Prospect Street and Henely Road, known
locally as the “Last Crumb” Junction.

This report also provides the officer response to this petition. Namely, the request for
such facilities is captured on the regularly reported ‘Requests for Traffic Management
Measures’. There are many other unfunded requests for change within this report and
officers are seeking funding opportunities to deliver these, in addition to the potential of
local 15% Community Infrastructure Levy allocation.

Policy Context

The Council Plan for the years 2025/28 includes priorities of delivering a sustainable
and healthy environment and to reduce our carbon footprint, for which the principles of
the Council’s Local Transport Plan and Local Cycling, Waking and Infrastructure Plan
support. The principle of enhancing facilities for pedestrians and removing potential
barriers to residents and visitors using sustainable, active transport modes aligns with
these strategies.

The Proposal

Current Position

On 2 September 2025 a petition was submitted to the Council containing indications of
support from 1855 individuals. The petition has been hosted online and was created on
3rd July 2025 stating:

There is a total lack of facilities for Caversham pedestrians crossing from Westfield

Road to walk up Peppard Road and visa versa. It is not hyperbolic to describe crossing
Page 21




3.2.

here as utterly terrifying. The simple installation of a puffin crossing at this location
would have limited impact upon traffic and yet improve pedestrian safety exponentially.
It is not a case of, if an accident will happen here, but more, a case of when.

It should be noted that crossing here by pedestrians is a very frequent occurrence.
Furthermore, many of these pedestrians are children. You have children going to and
from: The Hill primary school, St Anne's RC primary school, Chiltern nursery,
Caversham Preparatory school, Queen Anne's school and Highdown school. All these
children are regularly forced to take their lives in their hands. Not only are school
children forced to cross without adequate provision, parents who live on Peppard road
who wish to take their children to the closest play area (Westfield road park), are also
forced to gamble with their children’s safety. It is ridiculous the council has spent money
on refurbishing this play area only for the journey there to be so dangerous!

Furthermore, if you wish to visit Balmore Park from Westfield Road, again, those
wishing to access green spaces are having to play Russian roulette with their safety.

As any parent | want to promote a healthy lifestyle to my child by walking to school - a
wish that is aligned with the government's promotion of healthy living; and yet, | am
faced with the irony of having to cross a dangerous junction in order to promote a
healthy lifestyle! This is of course the same danger facing anyone who wishes to walk
info Reading town centre from Peppard road (and use the specially designed pedestrian
bridge over the river!).

It is of course also important to remember that this danger to pedestrians does not only
have an impact upon individuals - it has an impact upon society as a whole. If we are to
reduce obesity and the associated costs to the NHS, we need to embed a culture of
walking from childhood - how can this be achieved by asking children to face
unnecessary dangers on a daily basis? In addition, we all need to be taking steps
towards living in a carbon neutral way - how can these steps be achieved if they are
literally causing our children to step onto a dangerous road?

Furthermore, as any parent, | want to be teaching my child the importance of road
safety and the green cross code. This is impossible to do at this junction; and thus, must
be having a huge impact upon the understanding of road safety for a multitude of other
children, young people and adults in the area. It is also worth noting that for drivers it
can hardly be a pleasant experience having to dodge pedestrians on their car journeys.

There are of course the normal excuses like ‘it would cost too much’, but are we really
saying life is not valuable enough? Or, of course, the old trope, that it would cause
delays. To this | ask, what is really more important? Asking a driver to add, less than,
two minutes to their journey or saving a child's life as they walk to school? Or the
ludicrous line that drivers would be confused by the change! This would easily be
addressed with signage to indicate a change. It really boils down to, are we going to
address this matter now, before a death, or find the line "lessons need to be learnt” is
being said when it is all too late!

Finally, it should be noted the dangers faced by all pedestrians crossing junction are not
only even greater for our children, but also for our elderly and disabled too. The most
vulnerable are being put in the most danger! This is abhorrent!

At the desired location, all approaching roads are 30mph and are single lane
approaches and exits, with the exception of Henley Road, which has an additional right-
turn filter lane. This junction is the meeting point of two nationally classified ‘A’ roads, so
experiences relatively high volumes of local and commuter traffic by a number of
transport modes.

The junction will be serving as a catchment for a variety of local journeys, including
access to schools, shops, bus stops and businesses (local and town centre).

Page 22



3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

4.1.

4.2.

While the junction has traffic signal control, these do not operate a controlled pedestrian
crossing phase and the equipment, while operational, is one of the Council’s older
installations. The nearest controlled crossing is a zebra crossing on Prospect Street,
approximately 175m to the south-west.

The Peppard Road and Prospect Street approaches have relatively narrow footways
that are additionally constrained behind, and the eastern footway on Peppard Road
starts to raise significantly from the relative carriageway level.

Upon receiving a petition to improve pedestrian crossing facilities at the Last Crumb
Junction in November 2017, the Council agreed to add the change to the regularly
reported ‘Requests for Traffic Management Measures’ list for consideration at the Traffic
Management Sub-Committee meeting in January 2018.

Officers appreciate the strength of feeling with regards to the requested alterations to
this junction, but such changes will require substantial funding that is not yet identified.
A guide cost of circa £500k+ is expected, however there are a great deal of variables
that could mean a much higher cost. The request also sits alongside requests for
changes across the Borough with over 130 other entries for which there is also local
demand, but as yet no identified funding. These schemes are typically moved forward
when funding is received externally through developer agreements and reviewed
periodically for priority by councillors when that funding becomes available.

There is no set criteria which Councillors are required to apply when allocating these
funds, but typically a range of factors are considered. These may include the benefits of
a change such as safety or access improvements, the risks, such as increased queuing
(creating air quality issues for local residents), displacement (causing rat runs down
inappropriate roads) as well as the costs and available resources to allow delivery which
have to be considered against other requests for change or improvement.

Options Considered

The Council is currently in the budget setting process for financial year from April 2026
and as part of this process it is actively considering whether more funding for these
schemes can be provided, including this request for change, outside of developer
funding. At this stage we are not in a position to confirm whether or not this will result in
a funding stream as there are many competing priorities to balance against the money
available to the council.

Until such time as funding has been secured for this project, unfortunately we are
unable to commence any detailed investigation into this request, as this work will require
funding and available officer time has to be used on schemes that are already funded.

The existing entry for this requested change, within the ‘Requests for Traffic
Management Measures’ report, will be updated to reflect the receipt of this petition.

Other Options Considered

None at this time.
Contribution to Strategic Aims

The Council Plan has established five priorities for the years 2025/28. These priorities
are:

Promote more equal communities in Reading

Secure Reading’s economic and cultural success

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint
Safeguard and support the health and wellbeing of Reading’s adults and children
Ensure Reading Borough Council is fit for the future

In delivering these priorities, we will be guided by the following set of principles:

e Putting residents first
Page 23



4.3.

4.4.

7.2.

8.1.

Building on strong foundations

Recognising, respecting, and nurturing all our diverse communities
Involving, collaborating, and empowering residents

Being proudly ambitious for Reading

Full details of the Council Plan and the projects which will deliver these priorities are
published on the Council’'s website - Council plan - Reading Borough Council. These
priorities and the Council Plan demonstrate how the Council meets its legal obligation to
be efficient, effective and economical.

The recommendations in this report, if agreed, do not directly lead to a change being
introduced. However, the nature of the request align most closely with the following
priority:

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint

The appropriate provision of facilities to support walking, and/or removing potential
barriers to walking, can lead to an uptake in this active travel mode and to using public
transport options (walking to a bus stop). This can support reducing pollution, improving
air quality and creating spaces where people feel the benefits of clean air and active
travel. It should be noted, however, that the change will likely have a negative impact on
traffic flow through the junction, and the impact of this will need to be considered.

These provisions also support accessibility and mobility, which are key to thriving,
connected communities, ensuring everyone including the vulnerable can safely use
public spaces, regardless of age or ability.

Environmental and Climate Implications

The Council declared a Climate Emergency at its meeting on 26 February 2019 (Minute
48 refers).

The recommendations of this report will not directly lead to changes being introduced,
so a Climate Impact Assessment has not been considered necessary at this time.

Community Engagement

The lead petitioner will be informed of the decision of the Sub-Committee regarding the
request that they have made, following publication of the meeting minutes.

Traffic Management Sub-Committee is a public meeting. The agendas, reports, meeting
minutes and recordings of the meetings are available to view from the Council’s
website.

Equality Implications

Under the Equality Act 2010, Section 149, a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to -

e eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;

¢ advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

It is not considered that an Equality Impact Assessment is relevant at this time as the
report recommendations do not directly lead to any physical changes being introduced.

Other Relevant Considerations
There are none.
Legal Implications

Page 24


https://www.reading.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/

9.1.

10.
10.1.
1.

12.
12.1.

There are no foreseen legal implications arising from the recommendations of this
report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations of this report.
Timetable for Implementation

Not applicable.

Background Papers

There are none.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Lo emesenens s @ Reading

Borough Council
11 September 2025 Working better with you
Title Petition Response — Wokingham Road Pedestrian Crossing

Purpose of the report To make a decision

Report status Public report

Executive Director/
Statutory Officer
Commissioning Report

Emma Gee, Executive Director Economic Growth and
Neighbourhood Services

Report author Jim Chen, Assistant Engineer, Network Services

Lead Councillor Clir John Ennis, Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport

Deliver a sustainable & healthy environment & reduce Reading's

Council priority carbon footprint

1. That the Sub-Committee notes the content of this report.

2. Agree to propose a new entry onto the ‘Requests for Traffic
Management Measures’ report to reflect the receipt of this
petition and the requested measures.

3. Agree to the lead petitioner being informed of the decisions of the
Sub-Committee, following publication of the agreed minutes of
the meeting.

4. That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.

Recommendations

1. Executive Summary

1.1.  This report provides the Sub-Committee with officer recommendations in response to
the written petition requesting the Council to introduce a pedestrian crossing on
Wokingham Road, near to the Hamilton Road bus stop. This follows the petition receipt
report at the June 2025 meeting of this Sub-Committee, which is available to view here.

1.2.  Officers have considered the content of the petition and make a recommendation that
this request be considered for entry in the regularly reported ‘Requests for Traffic
Management Measures’. If agreed for inclusion within this process, the entry is recorded
for future funding allocation and the next update is expected at the November 2025
meeting of this Sub-Committee.

2. Policy Context

2.1.  The Council Plan for the years 2025/28 includes priorities of delivering a sustainable
and healthy environment and to reduce our carbon footprint, for which the principles of
the Council’s Local Transport Plan and Local Cycling, Waking and Infrastructure Plan
support. The principle of enhancing facilities for pedestrians and removing potential
barriers to residents and visitors using sustainable, active transport modes aligns with
these strategies.

Page 27


https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/documents/s35868/06A%20Wokingham%20Road%20Pedestrian%20Crossing.pdf

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

The Proposal

Current Position

On 18 May 2025 a petition was submitted to the Council containing counted indications
of support from 180 individuals, which stated:

Wokingham Road Pedestrian Crossing

We the undersigned request that a safe crossing be installed on Wokingham Rd close
to the Hamilton Road bus stop (by the cemetery wall).

Many residents have expressed their concerns about the dangers of crossing there. In
particular elderly, disabled people and those with young children find it challenging to
cross the road when high volumes of cars

travel at speed. A safe crossing would be a clear signal to drivers that pedestrians are
trying to cross the road. We urge you to implement this important measure for the
benefit of the people of Park Ward.

The Local Labour Team for Park Ward Matt Rodda MP — Labour MP for Reading
Central

As per the initial report to June 2025’s Sub-Committee meeting, officers noted that
Wokingham Road is a 30mph road with two westbound traffic lanes (a bus lane and a
general traffic lane) and an eastbound general traffic lane with an advisory cycle lane
alongside.

Both sides of the road have Red Route ‘no stopping at any time’ restrictions in place,
with the cemetery on the northern side and residential properties — some with off street
parking access — on the southern side.

The existing footway is between 1.7m - 1.85m in width on the north side and 2m - 2.3m
on the south side between Hamilton Road and Bulmershe Rd, the northern footway of
1.7m is just above the desirable minimum footway width of 1.5m, which is required to
provide adequate accessibility for prams and wheelchair users. The width of the
northern footway is potentially an issue when considering the installation of a formal
crossing.

There is a slight bend in the road east of its junction with Bulmershe Road,
nevertheless, Wokingham Road offers good visibility in both directions in its current
arrangement. When designing a pedestrian crossing facilities, it is vital that visibility
between drivers and pedestrians waiting to cross is adequate and complies with
nationally required standards, this is to allow drivers enough time to decelerate and stop
for those waiting to cross. It is worth noting that the existing bus stop may need to be
relocated away from any proposed crossing facility; in order for the minimum visibility
requirement be met — a stopped bus within that area required for visibility would be a
safety risk for the crossing.

Currently, the nearest formal pedestrian crossing is at Cemetery junction, approximately
200m west of the requested crossing near Hamilton Road bus stop. A controlled
pedestrian crossing at the location requested by the petitioners would improve
accessibility and reduce risks in crossing at this location, however the police-supplied
casualty data does not suggest there is a current road safety issue on this section of
Wokingham Road. There are no recorded incidents on Wokingham Road between the
junctions of Hamilton Road and Bulmershe Road within the latest 3-years period
(ending 213t January 2025). Officers therefore consider the requested crossing to be in
the context of risk reduction, rather than casualty reduction/road safety.

Page 28



3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

41.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Options Considered

There is currently no allocated funding for the development and delivery of the
pedestrian crossing requested in this petition. Officers acknowledge the concerns that
have been raised and the requested changes appear appropriate for this location,
based on the high-level review undertaken to date.

It is recommended that a new request entry be proposed onto the next update of the
‘Requests for Traffic Management Measures’ report, which is expected to be at the
November 2025 meeting of this Sub-Committee. It is suggested that the entry proposes
a pedestrian crossing facility on Wokingham Road near Hamilton Road bus stop, which
will be investigated and consulted when funding is allocated.

It should be expected that scheme development will only commence once funding has
been identified, where it will be programmed around other scheme development
priorities.

Other Options Considered

That the request is acknowledged, but no further action is taken.
Contribution to Strategic Aims

The Council Plan has established five priorities for the years 2025/28. These priorities
are:

Promote more equal communities in Reading

Secure Reading’s economic and cultural success

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint
Safeguard and support the health and wellbeing of Reading’s adults and children
Ensure Reading Borough Council is fit for the future

In delivering these priorities, we will be guided by the following set of principles:

Putting residents first

Building on strong foundations

Recognising, respecting, and nurturing all our diverse communities
Involving, collaborating, and empowering residents

Being proudly ambitious for Reading

Full details of the Council Plan and the projects which will deliver these priorities are
published on the Council’'s website - Council plan - Reading Borough Council. These
priorities and the Council Plan demonstrate how the Council meets its legal obligation to
be efficient, effective and economical.

The recommendations in this report, if agreed, do not directly lead to a change being
introduced. However, the nature of the request aligns most closely with the following
priority:

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint

The appropriate provision of facilities to support walking, and/or removing potential
barriers to walking, can lead to an uptake in this active travel mode and to using public
transport options (walking to a bus stop). This can support reducing pollution, improving
air quality and creating spaces where people feel the benefits of clean air and active
travel.

These provisions also support accessibility and mobility, which are key to thriving,
connected communities, ensuring everyone including the vulnerable can safely use
public spaces, regardless of age or ability.

Environmental and Climate Implications

Page 29


https://www.reading.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/

5.1.

5.2.

7.2.

8.1.

9.1.

9.2.
10.

10.1.

1.

12

12.1.

The Council declared a Climate Emergency at its meeting on 26 February 2019 (Minute
48 refers).

The recommendations of this report will not directly lead to changes being introduced,
so a Climate Impact Assessment has not been considered necessary at this time.

Community Engagement

The lead petitioner will be informed of the decision of the Sub-Committee regarding the
request that they have made, following publication of the meeting minutes.

Traffic Management Sub-Committee is a public meeting. The agendas, reports, meeting
minutes and recordings of the meetings are available to view from the Council’s
website.

Equality Implications

Under the Equality Act 2010, Section 149, a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to -

¢ eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;

¢ advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

It is not considered that an Equality Impact Assessment is relevant at this time as the
report recommendations do not directly lead to any physical changes being introduced.

Other Relevant Considerations
There are none.
Legal Implications

There are no foreseen legal implications arising from the recommendations of this
report.

Patricia Tavernier has cleared these Legal Implications.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations of this report.
Timetable for Implementation

Not applicable.

Background Papers

There are none.

Page 30



Agenda Item 7

Choose an item

11 September 2025

XA I
&b Reading

Title

Waiting Restriction Review Programme:
a. 2024B Proposals for Statutory Consultation

b. Recommended Removal of Fixed Enforcement Observation
Periods

Purpose of the report

To make a decision

Report status

Public report

Executive Director/
Statutory Officer
Commissioning Report

Emma Gee, Executive Director Economic Growth and
Neighbourhood Services

Report author

Jemma Thomas, Assistant Engineer, Network Services

Lead Councillor

Clir John Ennis, Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport

Council priority

Deliver a sustainable & healthy environment & reduce Reading's
carbon footprint

Recommendations

1. That the Sub-Committee notes the content of this report.
2. That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.
3. PartA:

3.1. That the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic
Services be authorised to undertake a statutory consultation
for the 2024B programme in accordance with the Local
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales)
Regulations 1996, for the proposals contained in Appendix
1.

3.2. That subject to no objections being received, the Assistant
Director of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to
make the Traffic Regulation Order for the 2024B
programme.

3.3. That any objection(s) received during the statutory
advertisement be reported to a future meeting of the Sub-
Committee for an outcome decision.

4. PartB:
4.1. That the Sub-Committee agrees to the recommended

changes to enforcement observation periods, as set out in
Section 3.5.

Executive Summary

1.1.  Requests for new waiting restrictions across the Borough, or amendments to existing
restrictions, are collated and considered for investigation as part of the Waiting
Restriction Review Programme.

1.2. PartA:

1.2.1. This report seeks approval for Officers to undertake statutory consultation for
recommended new/alterations to waiting restrictions as part of the 2024B

Page 31




1.3.

2.2.

2.3.

3.2.

programme. These proposals aim to address the issues raised in the initial list of
requests, which were reported to and agreed for investigation by the Sub-
Committee at their meeting in September 2024 (available here).

1.2.2. The recommendations within this report have been shared with Ward Councillors
and an opportunity provided for their comment.

Part B:

1.3.1. Officers are seeking agreement to remove the fixed 5 minute observation
periods currently being practiced for single-yellow, and double-yellow line
enforcement. This is not a statutory requirement and it is expected that a
consistent, discretionary approach will assist enforcement officers in
appropriately addressing parking issues being experienced across the Borough.

Policy Context

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) sets out the legal basis for making Traffic
Regulation Orders (TROs). It gives local authorities the power to make TROs to
regulate or restrict traffic as needed for:

(a) avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any other road or
for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, or

(b) preventing damage to the road or to any building on or near the road, or

(c) facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any class of traffic
(including pedestrians), or

(d) preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic of a kind which, or its use by
vehicular traffic in a manner which, is unsuitable having regard to the existing
character of the road or adjoining property, or

(e) preserving the character of the road in a case where it is especially suitable for
use by persons on horseback or on foot, or

(f) preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the road runs
or

(9) any of the purposes specified in paragraphs (a) to (c) of subsection (1) of
section 87 of the Environment Act 1995

Reading Borough Council’s Transport Strategy 2024 is a statutory document that sets
the plan for developing the Borough'’s transport network. It includes guiding policies and
principles including those related to Network Management (RTS17), Parking (RTS20),
Enforcement (RTS21) and Demand Management (RTS22).

The Council Plan for the years 2025/28 includes priorities of delivering a sustainable
and healthy environment and to reduce our carbon footprint, which align closely with the
provisions of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA), as both seek to improve
public wellbeing and sustainable development.

The Proposal

The Waiting Restriction Review programme is intended for relatively small-scale
alterations to waiting restrictions, to limit costs and resources required for development
and ensure that the programme can be progressed within the expected timescales and
within budget. Requests for new area Resident Permit Parking schemes will not form
part of this review programme. Minor alterations to relatively small areas of Resident
Permit Parking restrictions may be considered appropriate for inclusion within this
programme, on the basis that development of the proposals will follow the same
timeline, resourcing and expectations as the rest of the programme.

The Waiting Restriction Review programme follows the below milestones:

Page 32


https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=170&MId=5436&Ver=4

3.3.

3.4.

Request received and considered by officers (e.g. lawfulness, feasibility).

Merited request added to the list of new requests for the start of the next Waiting
Restriction Review Programme (Report to Traffic Management Sub-Committee
(TMSC)). Decision made on whether request should be investigated by Officers.

Officers investigate the issue and make recommendations in consultation with Ward
Councillors.

Officers recommend proposals for statutory consultation, or removal from the
programme (TMSC report, following consultation with Ward Councillors). Decision
made on whether proposals should progress to statutory consultation.

Legal documents are prepared and on-street notices created (also advertised in the
local newspaper) and erected for the start of the 21-day statutory consultation
period, following publication of the agreed TMSC meeting minutes.

The results of the statutory consultation are reported (TMSC), where feedback,
particularly objection(s), has been received. Decision made on whether proposals
should be implemented.

The Legal Order for the parking restrictions is finalised and advertised in the local
newspaper, following publication of the agreed TMSC meeting minutes.

Signs are designed and ordered. Contractors are issued detailed designs and
instructions for sign and post installation and lining work.

The Waiting Restriction Review programme is implemented.

Officers understand the local frustration and inconvenience that parking issues can
create. However, the programme is resource intensive, and this same resource is
responsible for supporting, developing and delivering other workstreams (e.g. Local
15% CIL funded schemes) in addition to business-as-usual workload, such as
addressing correspondence.

Part A: 2024B Recommendations for Statutory Consultation

Current Position

3.4.1. Approval was given by the Sub-Committee in September 2024 to carry out

investigations at various locations across the borough, based on the reported
list of requests that the Council had received for new or amended waiting
restrictions. The report is available here

Officers have investigated the issues that were raised and have considered
their recommendations accordingly.

3.4.2. In accordance with the report to the Sub-Committee in September 2024,

Officers shared their recommended proposals with Ward Councillors on 28t
July 2025, with amendments shared on 6" August 2025. Councillors were
asked to provide any feedback by 15" August 2025. This period provided
Councillors with an opportunity to informally consult with residents, consider the
recommendations and provide any comments for inclusion in Appendix 1 of this
report.

Options Considered

3.4.3. [Recommended] Schemes proceed to statutory consultation, or are removed,

as per the officer recommendations on Appendix 1.

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the comments and recommendations
in Appendix 1 and agree to schemes proceeding to statutory consultation, or
being removed from the programme, as per the officer recommendations.
Those proceeding to statutory consultation are recommended to follow the

process described in Section 3.4.6.
Page 33


https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=170&MId=5436&Ver=4

3.5.

3.4.4.

3.4.5.

3.4.6.

Remove a recommended scheme from the programme.

The Sub-Committee may wish to remove a scheme from the programme. In
this case, that scheme would not be taken to statutory consultation and no
further action undertaken.

Amend a recommended scheme.

Recommendations are shared with Ward Councillors ahead of report
finalisation, providing an opportunity for engagement with officers and comment
around any adjustments that may be felt necessary.

It is not recommended that any significant scheme amendments are proposed
at this Sub-Committee meeting. There is unlikely to be opportunity for them to
be properly considered and understood by officers or Sub-Committee members
— the decision and implications will not be fully understood. If a Member
considers that significant amendments are required, it is instead recommended
that the scheme be removed from the programme and its inclusion can be
considered as part of the next programme.

Schemes taken forward to statutory consultation will be included in a single
proposed Traffic Regulation Order that will be consulted. The proposed
restrictions will be consulted over a minimum period of 21 days (Sections 6 and
9 describe the legal process).

It is recommended that those schemes not receiving objection are considered
agreed for implementation, subject to decisions being made regarding the
remaining items on the TRO.

For schemes where objection has been received, officers will provide a further
report to the Sub-Committee seeking a decision on the outcome of the scheme.
If the content of the objection is such that officers consider that the scheme
should be removed from the programme, this recommendation will be made
clear to the Sub-Committee. Otherwise, the recommendations of officers for
each scheme is made in this report (Appendix 1).

The Legal Order will be finalised once a decision has been made on all of the
schemes contained within it and no part of the legal order will be implemented
in isolation.

Other Options Considered

3.4.7. None

Part B: Recommended Removal of Fixed Enforcement Observation Periods

Current Position

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs) have been operating a 5-minute observation
period when considering potential contraventions of double-yellow-line and
single-yellow-line restrictions (full-time and part-time no waiting restrictions).
This period is suspected of being a legacy position dating back to when
Reading Borough Council first secured civil enforcement powers for parking
contraventions.

It is not a legal requirement of the authority to undertake a fixed observation
period against these restrictions and it is considered that doing so is, in some
cases, leading to unnecessary access and traffic flow issues and potentially
increased road safety risks where motorists are taking advantage. This may
also be adding to the number of requests that the Council is receiving for
parking restrictions to address these abuses, many of which could be wholly
inappropriate and quite detrimental to residential areas (e.g. loading bans).

While it is considered to be within the senior officer authority to reduce the
observation period to addrels_)saag es%eéfific area of risk, a Boroughwide and



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

transparent approach is preferred and it is this approach for which officers are
seeking Sub-Committee agreement.

Options Considered

3.5.3. [Recommended] Removal of fixed observation periods for single yellow line
and double yellow line restrictions.

Removal of fixed observation periods and the creation of guidance for CEOs to
ensure consistently-applied discretion will enable CEOs to minimise the abuse
of single-yellow and double-yellow-line restrictions across the Borough.

If agreed, this change can be brought into effect almost immediately, without
need for statutory consultation or notification.

It would not be officers’ intention to ‘catch-out’ motorists who may have become
accustomed to this observation period, so it is additionally recommended that a
two-week period of warning notices would be issued from the implementation
of the change, prior to penalty charge notices being applied.

All other observation periods will remain the same.

3.5.4. Reduce the fixed observation period for single yellow line and double yellow
line restrictions.
Reducing, but maintaining a fixed observation period is not expected to yield
significant benefits.

3.5.5. Do not reduce the fixed observation period.

The benefits will not be realised and a case-by-case officer delegated approach
could risk challenges on the basis of inconsistency across the Borough.

Other Options Considered

3.5.6. There are none.
Contribution to Strategic Aims

The Council Plan has established five priorities for the years 2025/28. These priorities
are:

Promote more equal communities in Reading

Secure Reading’s economic and cultural success

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint
Safeguard and support the health and wellbeing of Reading’s adults and children
Ensure Reading Borough Council is fit for the future

In delivering these priorities, we will be guided by the following set of principles:

Putting residents first

Building on strong foundations

Recognising, respecting, and nurturing all our diverse communities
Involving, collaborating, and empowering residents

Being proudly ambitious for Reading

Full details of the Council Plan and the projects which will deliver these priorities are
published on the Council’s website - Council plan - Reading Borough Council. These
priorities and the Council Plan demonstrate how the Council meets its legal obligation to
be efficient, effective and economical.

The recommendations in this report align with the Council’s priorities, namely:

Page 35


https://www.reading.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/

5.2.

6.2.

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint

The Road Traffic Regulation Act enables the Council to introduce measures like speed
limits, low-emission zones, or restrictions on certain vehicles. These provisions directly
support reducing pollution, improving air quality and creating spaces where people feel
the benefits of clean air and active travel like walking and cycling.

By implementing TROs, the Council can create more green spaces and pedestrian
friendly areas, aligning with its goal of promoting a healthy environment which has a
positive impact on the life of every resident — making Reading a greener, more attractive
place to live, with a tangible impact on physical and mental health and life expectancy.

These actions also support accessibility and mobility, which are key to thriving,
connected communities, ensuring everyone including the vulnerable can safely use
public spaces, regardless of age or ability.

By managing traffic to reduce congestion and improve public transport flow, the Council
can boost local economic activities and make it easier for everyone to access
education, skills and training and good jobs.

The recommendations of this report relate to restrictions that should directly benefit the
flow of traffic, improve accessibility and reduce road safety risks. The recommendations
also seek to make best use of Council resources in delivering a variety of schemes that
will benefit Reading Highway users by improving active travel uptake, traffic flow, and
reducing risks.

Environmental and Climate Implications

The Council declared a Climate Emergency at its meeting on 26 February 2019 (Minute
48 refers).

A climate impact assessment has been conducted for the recommendations of Part A of
this report, resulting in a net minor positive impact.

There has been/will be some minor negative impact for investigation and design,
through travel and energy usage. Travel impacts have been partly mitigated through
preferred use of the Council’s electric pool cars and through walking and cycling to site
wherever practicable. Advertised notices need to be weatherproof and are, therefore,
not typically recyclable. The implementation of schemes currently requires burning of
fossil fuels for the specialist machinery and some road marking application/removal
techniques.

However, it is expected that these relatively minor negative impacts over a short period
of time will be more than overcome by the benefits of scheme implementation. The
proposals cover Highway risk reduction, accessibility and traffic flow improvements that,
once resolved, should improve traffic flow (lower emissions, improved flow for public
transport) and remove some barriers toward increased use of sustainable and healthy
transport options.

Community Engagement

Persons requesting waiting restrictions are informed that their request will form part of
the waiting restriction review programme and are advised of the timescales of this
programme.

Ward Councillors are provided with the recommended proposals prior to these being
agreed for statutory consultation by the Sub-Committee. This provides an opportunity
for a level of informal engagement in order to provide initial feedback to officers.

Ward Councillors are also made aware of the commencement dates for statutory
consultation, so that there is an opportunity for them to encourage community feedback
in this process.

Page 36



6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

7.2.

8.1.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

Any Statutory consultation will be carried out in accordance with the Local Authorities
Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996, advertised on street,
in the local printed newspapers and on the Council’s website.

Where responses to statutory consultations include petitions that have not been
separately reported, the lead petitioner(s) will be informed of the decision of the Sub-
Committee, following publication of the agreed meeting minutes. Respondents to
statutory consultations will also be informed of the Sub-Committee decisions.

Traffic Management Sub-Committee is a public meeting. The agendas, reports, meeting
minutes and recordings of the meetings are available to view from the Council’s
website.

Equality Implications

Under the Equality Act 2010, Section 149, a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to -

¢ eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;

¢ advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

It is not considered that an Equality Impact Assessment is relevant as the proposals are
not anticipated to have a differential impact on people with protected characteristics.
The statutory consultation process provides an opportunity for objections/ support/
concerns to be considered prior to a decision being made on whether to implement the
proposals.

Other Relevant Considerations
There are none.
Legal Implications

The Council has considered all of its legal obligations when seeking to make Traffic
Regulation Orders.

The order for the 2024B programme of restrictions will be drafted under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 and advertised in accordance with the Local Authorities Traffic
Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 sets out the legal basis for making TROs. The
Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996
provides for the statutory processes to be followed in making TROs.

Before making a TRO, the local authority must carry out a statutory consultation,
engaging with the Chief of Police, residents, businesses, emergency services and
transport operators. A notice detailing the proposed restrictions and the reasoning
behind them is published in a local newspaper and displayed on site in the areas where
the restrictions would apply. Members of the public have 21 days in which to submit
objections or comments on the proposal. In order for any comments to be valid, it must
be in writing, state the grounds on which it is made and sent to the address specified in
the notice.

With any traffic regulation order proposals, the Council (either via delegated authority, or
by agreement of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee) may decide whether to
proceed with the TRO as published, modify it, or abandon it. If it is agreed to proceed,
the TRO is formally made and a further notice is published giving the date when the
order comes into force. The final step is to implement the restrictions by installing the
necessary signage and road markings.

Page 37



9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

9.8.
9.9.

9.10.
10.

The Council has considered its Network Management Duty under the Traffic
Management Act 2004 and its Section 122 duty under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984.

Network Management Duty

Part 2 Section 16 (1) of The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a duty on the Council
as a local traffic authority to manage their road network with a view to achieving, so far
as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other obligations, policies and

objectives, the following objectives—

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority's road network; and

(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which another
authority is the traffic authority.

(2) The action which the authority may take in performing that duty includes, in
particular, any action which they consider will contribute to securing—

(a) the more efficient use of their road network; or

(b) the avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or other disruption to the
movement of traffic on their road network or a road network for which another authority
is the traffic authority;

and may involve the exercise of any power to regulate or co-ordinate the uses made of
any road (or part of a road) in the road network (whether or not the power was conferred
on them in their capacity as a traffic authority). This duty places an ongoing obligation in
ensuring overall traffic efficiency and network performance and not only applies to
vehicles but all to pedestrians and cyclists.

Section 122 duty

Further Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 places a duty on the local
authority so far as practicable to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. In carrying out this exercise the
Council must have regard to the following:

* Desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises.

* The effect on the amenities of any locality effected and (without prejudice to the
generality of this paragraph) the importance of regulating and restricting the use
of roads by heavy commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the
amenities of the areas through which the road(s) run.

* The strategy prepared under Section 80 of the Environment Act 1995 (the
national air quality strategy).

» The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of
securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such
vehicles.

* Any other matters appearing to the local authority to be relevant.
This duty focuses on the making of individual traffic regulation decisions.

Each of these duties has been considered in detail in relation to the schemes identified
in this report.

Patricia Tavernier has cleared these Legal Implications
Financial Implications

The cost of undertaking a typical Waiting Restriction Review programme from beginning
to implementation of the agreed schemes is anticipated to be less than £50,000.

Page 38



10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.
11.

In addition to the implications referred in Section 10.1, the making of the resultant TRO
and delivery of the schemes therein enable civil enforcement to be undertaken. While
the objective of the restrictions is to prevent the issues that were occurring previously
and/or prevent unauthorised access to parts of the Highway, contraventions do occur
and these generate revenue that is invested as per the Council’s Annual Parking
Reports. Additionally, parking restrictions help to minimise accelerated damage to the
Highway occurring through, for example, parking on the footway and verges. These
mitigations reduce the burden on the Council’s Highway Maintenance budgets.

Capital Implications

The Waiting Restriction Review programmes are funded by capital allocations from the
Integrated Transport Block, currently providing £100,000 annually on the basis of
developing and delivering two programmes per year.

Value for Money (VFM)

The programme provides value for money by collating requests and developing and
delivering schemes as a single project. In comparison to an alternative of addressing
requests on a more ad-hoc basis, this provides the benefit of resourcing efficiency and
financial economies of scale. For example, the restrictions are included in a single
Traffic Regulation Order, minimising advertising costs and the lining implementation is
commissioned as a single project.

Most aspects of the programme are delivered using Reading Borough Council’s own
resources. This typically includes investigation and designing of the schemes, drafting
creation of the Traffic Regulation Orders and the delivery of many engineering elements
on street.

Risk Assessment

The primary risk is with the 2024A programme (Part A), around the deferral of a
decision regarding the elements of the programme to be agreed (or otherwise) for
delivery. Deferral will result in crossover of resource-intensive elements for multiple
programmes and schemes being developed by the same staffing resource. This will
result in slippage to other schemes, which could have financial implications as well as
impacting on the delivery expectations of these other schemes.

The financial risks with the Waiting Restriction Review programmes overall should be
mitigated by the Sub-Committee and Ward Councillors taking note of the remit of this
programme, as outlined in Section 3.1. The costs of the programme, both in terms of
deliverables and resource costs, will directly correlate to the scale and complexity of the
resultant schemes.

Andy Stockle has cleared these Financial Implications.
Timetable for Implementation
The following tables provide the intended timeline:

Table 1 (2024B programme)

Line | Milestone When (subject to change)
1 Draft TRO following decisions of TMSC October 2025
2 Undertake statutory consultation October/November 2025

3 Report objections to TMSC, seeking agreement | November 2025
to implement

4 Adjust the TRO according to the decisions of Winter 2025
TMSC
5 Make the resultant TRO Winter 2025

Page 39



6 Deliver the scheme

Early Spring 2026

12. Background Papers
12.1. There are none.
Appendices —

1.

Recommendations for consultation (2024B programme)

Page 40




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

1. Abbey

Valpy Street

Request to review parking restrictions on Valpy
Street to allow enough time for pick up and drop
off for the Little Pioneers Co-op Nursery.

Valpy Street is on a Red Route due to high
frequency use by buses and all available parking /
loading areas are fully allocated. Additional bays or
changes to restrictions are therefore not feasible.
However, an existing loading bay around the corner
in The Forbury could have its operating times
amended so nursery users can stop in it for a period
of up to 20 minutes during the day, including peak
hours.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5501-P01 Valpy Street.

T abed

Page | 1




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

3 VAL

L

=

2 abed

EXISTING RESTRICTION
No Stopping Except

A 9.30am - 4pm, 6pm - 7.30am

Loading only Max. 20 mins

PROPOSED RESTRICTION
No Stopping Except
7.30am - 6pm
Loading only Max. 20 mins

0 Crmwm copyright and duistmes sphis 208 . Lnmsthormd mpmduston
imbinges Croen mopyright anc Tary s D promecrSon o chil Toaeedinge
Crcrmece Surey CIOMITISTS

= Issue Status
LITAITES NOTE: The powbon of wey ciesg feb or privrs sswern, <5y mervce
plaet o mppEarakan e o Fo g s bedeved 5 be et et waTay i S
I saprmm or Epber. s B ! o AR A A b preeer £ it
e The Corbmctr i arsbors acvmed b orosriaks ek car resigEScn wtens Ba
premsnca of e axistng mewe, mrdses, pet o SEAEEE TRy St fr oo

Client/Project:

@ Stantec ‘4“:!% Reading

B oo emerntios Borough Council
o i e Working better with you
e noted . | WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20245

purpose noted above.
READING, UNITED IKIMNGDOR

§1 FOR COORDINATION

Use of this docurment for any other
purpces ks not permiSed. —
Copynght Reserved

PP ESE

Issued Revision

CHBAAL BB T BT IS0 700 0 -l s 1 Mo e i 51 4T s 8

Pl P W il 1

Tile

PROPOSED TRO LOCATICN
VALPY STREET [ THE FORBURY

Project Ho. AZCae
32812181 1:250

Revision Drowing Ho.
FO1 332612181-5TH-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5501

Page | 2



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

1. Battle

Beresford Road

Request to review the existing restrictions at the
southern end of Beresford Rd, close to its
junction with Oxford Road, due to issues caused
by parked vehicles.

The parking and access issues in Beresford Road
are longstanding, particularly in the evenings and at
weekends. It is therefore recommended that a
section of the existing single yellow line should be
converted to a full time double yellow line to help
reduce disruption to traffic flow in and out of the
junction.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5502-P01_Beresford Road.

¢t abed

Page | 3




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

@
B
g L PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
« ANY TIME RESTRICTION
(9]
N
Eay /
) .»"‘h-.______‘._\_\" {\\\‘\
M-\—\'-.-ﬁ,__hq
2 H i 15 = zsm
i ey ) e pvw—
Haoites: lssue Stafus Client/Project: Titie
FTRITRRS 4T T it sy iy e e e e, ity s, . PROPCSED TR0 LOSANEN
e e e Stantec | £ Readin eerceo o
ST et | 5] FOR COORDINATION 2 -y ,
j Borough Council
: ) Working better with you
H e pue roted dba, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 ]
& User of this docurment for any other Project Mo. AZ Scale
E: purpoes & not pammisad. READING, UNITED KIMGDOM 33612181 1:250
gi o TR BT = - Rewision Dingraving Ho.
gi |ssued/Revision FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5502

Page | 4



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation

1. Caversham Rufus Isaacs Road | Request to install double yellow lines to prevent | Rufus Isaacs Road already has No Waiting At Any
parking on Rufus Isaacs Road, near its junction Time restrictions on both sides including at its

with Henley Road. Issues have been reported by | junction with Fairfax Close. However, there is a gap
vehicles leaving Fairfax Close having near in the restrictions on the west side that allows
misses with vehicles entering from Henley Road. | parking for two or three cars. It is recommended that
this gap is closed with a No Waiting At Any Time
restriction.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5504-P01_Rufus Isaacs Road

G abed

Page | 5



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
B
EXISTING GAP TO BE REPLACED .
BY NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
RESTRICTION
0
QD
Q
@
N
(o))
. A
§
i
i 3 : 1 1 = z=m
| sy o et seas 12
e B
Hotes: Issue Status ClientyProject: Title
UTLITIES HOTL. The posion of mey sceing sublic or privars sesers, <5y services, . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
e i o o e e Stantec ‘m Re adl n o Anaces poa
e o g s e, o, e ¢ v gt tar oo |51 FOR COORDINATION “ -y
rmme el PR .x Borough Council
3 Working better with you
i3 o nod e, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
F i Usa of this document for amy other P'\G:ECT“G. A23cae
ﬂ'g pupose & not permiSed. READING. UNITED KINGDOM 332612181 1:250
i :
5; e e T Revision Drowing Ho.
:: |ssued/Revision Dan. v FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN- XX -DR-TR-5504

Page | 6



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
1. Church Linden Road / Request to extend the existing double yellow Visibility splays at this junction could be improved by
Beech Road lines at the junction of Linden Road and Beech extending the current No Waiting At Any Time
Road. restrictions on Beech Road to the west and east of
Linden Road.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5505-P01_Linden Road and Beech Road
2. Church Windermere Road | Request for double yellow lines at the bottom of | Recommend adding a new No Waiting At Any Time

the hill on the inner side of the bend because it’s
a blind spot and parked vehicles create an
additional hazard.

restriction on the bend to help with visibility in the
area.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5506-P01_Windmere Road

/1 abed

3. Church/ Katesgrove

Long Barn Lane

Request to extend the existing 2hr parking zone
to cover the entire length of the park to curb long
term parking of vehicles awaiting repair.

We propose installing new parking bays along the
front of the park, with a gap in-between to allow
access for recycling collection vehicles. The new
bays would have the same time controls as the
existing adjacent bays and the gap would have a No
Waiting At Any Time restriction.

A small section of additional double yellow lines is
also proposed on the north west side, to prevent
vehicles parking on the pavement.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5507-P03 Long Barn Lane

Page | 7




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
B
™
-~ = ",
| ﬁ PROPOSED MO WAITING
/ AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION
& ‘ N\
® i N
N
(o0]
PROPOSED NO WAITING
AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION
N
i
H
i g ; VI o
i | SmrrlomGumumemine davirtpminte, sone vase
P S
5 Hates: lssuwe Status Client/Project: Tie
.! UTLITES ROTE: The pomton of oy suusng aublic or priverie sewer, S5y services, ™ PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
e b v e st o s :;‘;:;,“;,’::;2F - ‘m R e a d I n UNDEN ROAD | BEECH ROAD
e o e e v s, et o npaain oy e e onmirn. | §1 FOR COORDINATION v !
i .k Borough Council
i Working better with you
L et nfod b, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 ,
= Usa of this documant for any other P'B_ECT”G. A2 Scae
i-’g purpose s not permiSed. READING, UNITED KIHNGDCM 339612181 1:250
g § hon Pl g = 5 T Revision Drawing M.
g; Issued Revision L Dan. g F01 332412181 -5TN-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5505

Page | 8



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
N
8
T
— PROPOSED NO WAITING
g AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION
«Q
(0]
N
©
A
i
H
i
r
1 5 n 1 = 35m
It st ol i e acae vz
é Drcrmeon Sy CIENITIETT
5 Hotes: Issue Status Client/Project: Tiie
.! UTIITIES NOTL The powbon of moy sdwing Dublc oF priviris sswers, S5y services, . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
|| ke s b e Stantec ‘!,'q_ Re adl n o ENERE 70D
11| et LT ELITSIENET | 81 FOR COORDINATION v
i . 23 Borough Council
i Working better with you
H e raed atavg, | WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
i= Use of this document for any other P'D:EC?I lo. A2 Scake
F?g puspcas i not parmSed. READING, UMITED KINGDOM 232612181 1250
i :
3 § o T & mm Revision Droaing M.
g; |sued/Revision [ ey FO1 332612181 -5TN-HGN-X X -DR-TR- 5504

Page | 9



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B

— Recommendation Report

PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS

i i EXISTING PARKING BAYS:

MONDAY - FRIDAY &am - 6:30pm. 2
HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

EXISTING PARKING BAY:
MONDAY - FRIDAY 8am - 6:30pm. 2
HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

0G abed

3 o PROPOSED PARKING BAYS:
N MONDAY - FRIDAY 8am - 6:20pm. 2

HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
RESTRICTIONS TO ENSURE RECYCLING
COLLECTION VEHICLE ACCESS

A 1 T A g T g

Fim=t o Bppayhm s o= S rrwing i bl b be ewet bt o ety i S
I axpreamt or Empkad e uch ek o SEERSEAI ey Sl B preme! s net

Sromas Tha ComRsir I harstors sovisd I rosriaks Bak e INSgRSsn aters B
Fremence ol sy s sk mewe mm-Azen piuc o appacabs may aec S oo edco

@ Stantec

Siorsiac LK Limbesd

ATA I

$1 FOR COORDINATION 1‘ -y Readl ng

.2 Borough Council
Working better with you

WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248

READING, UNTED KINGDOM

‘Covaninar icige Haae, Wersenan Race

This decumand is subabie only for e
purpose nofed abave.
Use of this document for any other
purpase ks not pekEMtied.

BRI BT I T (e, e s P gt P g

Pl 8 0 34 08T it B

Issued/Revision

1 2n ] &0 E0 A00m
i i ! t |
) Crmam copyrig=t ans deintm s S J08 | Unmsormed npmston SCALE 11000
iHmgem Crown @Emigh an: mmp mes & proseastar o chi orsmedings = -
Crdrmnce Suresy S1OKO31ET
Hates: lssue Status Client/Project: Thie
UTIITIEES KOTE: The poaton of m=y snwsng Dublic or privrs sever, S8Ry serices,

FROPOSED TRO LOCATION

LOHIG BARM LANE

Project Ha. AZicae
Fapé1181 11000

Rewvision Dinzing Ho.
FO3 ¥32812181-5TH-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5507

Page | 10



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
1. Coley Downshire Square | Request to extend the existing double yellow We propose to extend the existing No Waiting At
lines close to its junction with Maitland Road due | Any Time restriction along the east side.
to vehicles obstructing resident driveways.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5508-P02 Downshire Square
2. Coley Reservoir Request for double yellow lines near the path to Proposal for new No Waiting At Any Time
Crescent Western Road. restrictions on both sides around the bend to

prevent obstruction on the roadway and ensure
access to the footpath.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5509-P01 Reservoir Crescent

TG abed

Page | 11




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
8
o)
o))
«Q
)
ol PROPOSED EXTENSION
N _ OF NO WAITING AT ANY
l TIME RESTRICTION
.
!
1
g
¥
? s 1 s = 35m
§ | Semrpretes i i st scns 250
é Drsrmers Sy 01 BIIVIETY
5 Hotes: Issue Stafus Client/@roject: Title
;_| UTRITES NOTL: The powbon of any suusng Rcbiic o privre aewers, oSy serviae, . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
P e Stantec AT Re adl n OIS ScUssE
T e e e T | 51 FOR COORDINATION v -y !
i Eﬁ;ﬂr:”'* v o .2 Borough Council
i Working better with you
LH e noied thawe, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
u= Use of this documant tor amy other Project Mo. A2 Zcae
ﬂ.'g purpase s nat peREMted. READING, UNITED KINGDOM 332612181 1250
_‘_ H I UPTAATED FORLOAWING COMMERTS FECH IS0 — -
El ; 1 F Revition D":'Mng Mo.
:' ; |sued/Revision FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN- XX -DR-TR-5508

Page | 12



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
N
B
U
QD
% PROPOSED NO WAITING AT | ~,
o ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS
w
T
“
. A
H
i
i
H
i
i e .t w® = =  =n
b | ool ittt scus s
E- Drormecs Sumay COOOOTIETS
;: Hotes: Issue Status Client/eroject: Tinie
2 LITAITIS WOTE: The poton of moy eriwing Aublc or privae sswens, Sy mervices, . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
| ST Stantec | &% Readin
| PETSERUSSITIIUSITASETIN | s1FOR COORDINATION ! -y !
R RR7 5orough Council
i Working better with you
25 e notod cbot, | WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20245 _
s Use of this documeant for amy ofher Project Ho. AZScale
;§ PR [ not permised. READING, UNTED KIHGDCM 333613181 1250
i -
;; T TR Resizion Drowing M.
i Issued/Revison FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5507

Page | 13



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

1.

Emmer Green

Rossendale Road

Request to extend the existing double yellow
lines along Rossendale Road to prevent double
parking which is causing issues with visibility and
blocking traffic.

Proposal to extend the existing No Waiting At Any
Time restriction along the east side.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5510-P01_Rossendale Road

2.

Emmer Green

Henley Road
(south side) —
between all
Hallows Road to
Micklands Road

Request for double yellow lines to prevent
obstruction of Willow View due to parking on the
footpath and carriageway

Proposal for new Waiting At Any Time restrictions
on both sides of Willow View and either side of the
junction to improve visibility splays.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5511-P02_ Henley Road

G abed

3. Emmer Green

Grove Road

Request for double yellow lines on the access
road to St. Barnabas Church to prevent damage
on the verges and improve safety for
pedestrians.

There are existing double yellow lines on the
highway which apply to the pavement and verge.
The area outside the church is therefore
enforceable. The issues raised by the resident have
also been shared with our enforcement team.

We therefore recommend that this be removed from
the programme.

Page | 14




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

I 3 4
N
B
PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS
I
-
QD
«Q
(0]
(6)]
a1
A
:II 1|:I 2P ZIE -1|0 %En‘
iy o e il acALE w200
rendouile i bt
Hates: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie
UTRITHRS HOTE: T ooy sl ablc vt s, By v, . PROFCAED T50 LOCATION
e e e st o e Stantec ‘!,\ Re adl n RoniE DAL ROAT
e o g a2 e msonn. puet o spntm oy afut s aonntern. | §1 FOR COORDINATION v -y
T o R, Borough Council
iz Working better with you
H e reed e, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20245
Fi Use of ths document tor any other F"D:ECTHG. A2 Scake
LH] purpcse ks not permiSed. READING, UMITED KINGDOM 332612181 1500
B: :
§§ o P Revidon Drowing Ho.
:' ; |ssued/Revision FD1 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5510

Page | 15



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

T 3 4
M
B
s
EXISTING
PARKING AREA
0
QD
Q
@
a1
(@)}
N ~
~._
: PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY
‘ TIME RESTRICTIONS
.
¥
2 H 12 i = 3=
| | o vt seas s
: Hotes: lssue Stafus ClientiProject: Titie
| e ey iy e ey e . FEOPOSED THO LOCATION
|| s Stantec | A Read| n ruerEoAs
H | ot e e movo st weenia ey e e | 51 FOR COORDINATION ! -y .
e J Borough Council
i Working better with you
i T o e e oy, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
] - Usa of this document for any other _ Project Ho. AZIcake
Eg o purpose & not permiSed. READING. UNITED KHNGDCHM 332612181 1250
=: e : (TR Rewision Drowing Ho.
g ; |ssuedRevision & [t gy Pa2 332412181-5TH-HGHN - XX -DR-TR-5511

Page | 16



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

1. Katesgrove

Cradock Road

Request for additional restrictions on the north
side of the road, between both of its junctions
with Boulton Road, to address issues caused by
parked vehicles.

To propose to convert the existing single yellow
lines to double yellow lines to help with enforcement
of parking on the north side.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5513-P02_Cradock Road

2. Katesgrove

Boulton Road

Request for double yellow lines on the road
opposite the entrance of 5 Boulton Rd to prevent
damage and obstruction of the gate.

We propose to install some additional double yellow
lines to help ensure that large vehicles can
manoeuvre and access the off-street parking areas.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5514 P01 _Boulton Road

1S abed

3. Katesgrove

Northumberland
Avenue 1

Request for a loading ban near its junction with
Ella Garrett Close due to issues caused by
vehicles parking during school pick up and drop
off.

Proposal to extend School Keep Clear markings to
help prevent issues caused by vehicles parking
here during school pick up and drop off times.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5515-P02_Northumberland Avenue 1

4. Katesgrove/Church

Long Barn Lane

Request to extend the existing 2hr parking zone
to cover the entire length of the park to curb long
term parking of vehicles awaiting repair.

We propose installing new parking bays along the
front of the park, with a gap in-between to allow
access for recycling collection vehicles. The new
bays would have the same time controls as the
existing adjacent bays and the gap would have a
No Waiting At Any Time restriction.

A small section of additional double yellow lines is
also proposed on the north west side, to prevent
vehicles parking on the pavement.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5507-P03 Long Barn Lane

5. Katesgrove/Redlands

Northumberland
Avenue 2

Request for double yellow lines near the
roundabout due to issues caused by parked

We propose to install some new double yellow lines
and to convert a section of the existing single yellow

Page | 17




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

vehicles during the school pick up/drop off
period.

lines to double yellow lines. This will help prevent
issues caused by vehicles parking on this junction.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5516 - PO3_Northumberland Avenue 2

8G abed

Page | 18




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 | 3 4
N
PROPOSED CONVERSION
OF SINGLE YELLOW LINES
TO NO WAITING AT ANY
TIME RESTRICTIONS
, _
= ¥
y,
s
-
QD
«Q
(0]
a1
(o]
N
§
]
r
3 : 2 1s b 3=m
:!; © Crewn coprmigt ln:dﬂ::;ﬁ:.:zb Mh:.‘m ——— Y 1-28p :
.;: Drormece Surey D1KITIETS
;: Hohes: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie
H el ed - Vi o o o eyt dearer- MR . PROPOSED TRO LOTATION
| e e Stantec AT Read| n SRADOCK 704D
T s T | $1 FOR COORDINATION v !
il it NP .k Borough Council
; 1o i 1w s Working better with you
25 e need e, . WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 i
W : Use of ths document for any other _ F"D_ECTT lo. A2 Scale
E: _ _ _ puwpose k& not pemised. CO:'.-"'gm Pp— READING, UNITED KINGDOM 23612181 1250
i : L — B I Resizion Dincraving Ho.
:; |sued/Revision D Dugp PO 332412181 -5TH-HGN-XX -DR-TR-5513

Page | 19



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
N
B
PROPOSED NO WAITING
AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION -
Y
Q
Q
)
o
o
N
§
i
g
i
i g ; B s =
:I; O:l—.ﬂ:.m'llmdﬂ:ll‘ﬂl'lzﬂ nestrormd epmauckon —— E-Te 1:250
- irHogea Croen ceright and Ty leec o proseastcor o ovil arsaeedige
Do e
;: Hotes: Issue SrOtus Clignt/Project: Titie
B | rasmes wote o pomsr o s o e e e iy v - PROPOSED TR0 LOTATION
]| oo o i Stantec AT Re adl n Eouiron 3040
: SIS ESSIITIINES NI IS | 1 FOR COORDINATION W -y
i s e e .k Borough Council
H Working better with you
i T e rated shve. WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
& Use of this doc it y o Project Mo, AZ 3COe
i3 o ppers srennemmas READING, UNTED KHGDOM w218 1:250
M '
gi o T Revision Drarwing Ho.
§i |sueg/Revision FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TE-5514

Page | 20



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

B
- PROPOSED EXTENSION
— - OF SCHOOL KEEP
o CLEAR MARKING
jab)
Q
D
(o]
(RS
A
i
;
¥
H 1 H 1 15 20 25m
SOl SRR S tetoviete. seaE s
Hotes: lssue Stafus Client/Broject: Title
LTAITES HOTE: The pearton o wey exiaieg ot or privas sewern, <y mervion.

it or apoaTREm shee o i Creeng i tedewed & be comwct, bt i wweey o Sin
I mprmammet o Frpled Ot such pim= or apEeeLE ey Sk b preset s met
s Tha Corbmstr i iarshrs sovisd I robimks Bar Sen ISEgESsn wiers B

Srmmnce o wey s mewes meazen et apEaaL e AP ba ¢ creizL §1 FOR COORDINATION

XA 1 SR LALD 04D
&% Reading

BRIMAL T BT WD M i st - Bengi i g

i Borough Council

= = Working better with you

: This document ks subable only for e ezaref I - -

1 Purpoas rafed aave. WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _

u Usa of this docurment for any other Project Mo AZ cake

l purpese & not permSad. P ——— READING, UHITED KHGDOM 33612181 1250

: 2

1 ST P B & e Rewizion Drorwing Ho.

g Isued/Revision Dun g FO1 332612181-5TH-HGH-EX-DR-TR-5515

Page | 21



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B

— Recommendation Report

PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS

i i EXISTING PARKING BAYS:

MONDAY - FRIDAY &am - 6:30pm. 2
HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

EXISTING PARKING BAY:
MONDAY - FRIDAY 8am - 6:30pm. 2
HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

29 abed

3 o PROPOSED PARKING BAYS:
N MONDAY - FRIDAY 8am - 6:20pm. 2

HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.

PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
RESTRICTIONS TO ENSURE RECYCLING
COLLECTION VEHICLE ACCESS

A 1 T A g T g

Fim=t o Bppayhm s o= S rrwing i bl b be ewet bt o ety i S
I axpreamt or Empkad e uch ek o SEERSEAI ey Sl B preme! s net

Sromas Tha ComRsir I harstors sovisd I rosriaks Bak e INSgRSsn aters B
Fremence ol sy s sk mewe mm-Azen piuc o appacabs may aec S oo edco

@ Stantec

Siorsiac LK Limbesd

ATA I

$1 FOR COORDINATION 1‘ -y Readl ng

.2 Borough Council
Working better with you

WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248

READING, UNTED KINGDOM

‘Covaninar icige Haae, Wersenan Race

This decumand is subabie only for e
purpose nofed abave.
Use of this document for any other
purpase ks not pekEMtied.

BRI BT I T (e, e s P gt P g

Pl 8 0 34 08T it B

Issued/Revision

1 2n ] &0 E0 A00m
i i ! t |
) Crmam copyrig=t ans deintm s S J08 | Unmsormed npmston SCALE 11000
iHmgem Crown @Emigh an: mmp mes & proseastar o chi orsmedings = -
Crdrmnce Suresy S1OKO31ET
Hates: lssue Status Client/Project: Thie
UTIITIEES KOTE: The poaton of m=y snwsng Dublic or privrs sever, S8Ry serices,

FROPOSED TRO LOCATION

LOHIG BARM LANE

Project Ha. AZicae
Fapé1181 11000

Rewvision Dinzing Ho.
FO3 ¥32812181-5TH-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5507

Page | 22



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
. SECTION OF EXISTING
SINGLE YELLOW LINE TO
BE REMOVED
1
T
QD
% PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
o ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS
w
ia
i
H
!
T
E :II ? ‘P IIE o ?Ell‘
HI I iy merirrrs gty e aoaLe 1as
R e
;: Hotes: Issue Siafus Client/Project: Title:
i LT 30 T st g it e it e, il . ERPOSED THO LOGATION
| EEEsEEmaT e Stantec | £A Readin oo s
s g e v, et it vepmcein oy s tme s | 51 FOR COORDINATION v n
it .2 Borough Council
E Working better with you
i T pon roed b, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
wE Use of this document for any other F"D_ECT”G. A2 Scae
ﬁf purpose ks not permiSed. READING, UMITED KINGDOM 332619181 1250
52 ] it e Revision Drowing Ha.
3
g; Issued/Revision i FO3 332412181 -5TN-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5514

Page | 23



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

1. Kentwood

Armour Hill

Request for double yellow lines on the south side
of the road, near Armour Walk due to obscured
visibility caused by parking at this site.

We propose to install a new No Waiting At Any Time
restriction across the entrance to Amour Walk to
ensure there is good visibility at this junction.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5517-P02_Armour Hill

2. Kentwood

Broomfield Road

Request for additional restrictions near the
Norcot Road junction due to issues caused by
vehicles parking partially on the pavement.

The installation of restrictions here would restrict
resident and visitor parking and could cause
displacement issues further up the road. There are
existing restrictions in place to protect the junction.

We therefore recommend that this be removed from
the programme.

9 abed

Page | 24




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

EXISTING NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTION

B o~
PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTION
5 :
v
Q
(0]
o
&)
N
H
i
i
i
i 3 H 2 15 bl zsm
R s st o oyt ricsnree e
i Ordrmncs Surey 00 0ETY
: Haotes: Issue Status Client/Project: Tite
: AFTRITAES: MR T ot sy i el o e, sl v, . PR OAED THO LOGATION
|| emmamgseai e b e Stantec ‘m Re adl n el
i whows. The Corbacior mtherelors scvied © orderiaks her con v T whers B
31| FESUSLELISIITLESLITASTISEIT | ST FOR COORDINATION v 'y
el X Borough Council
i Working better with you
Btk Thi '] enly for . - - -
i; O arpase rcod cbove, | WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
u : Use of this documant for any other _ Project Mo. A2icae
53 purpase s not permised. READING, UNTED KINGDOM 339612181 12250
E M L RLOWISHE TUMAMERTS FRCM BB — -
i ; es e Revision Dirowing Mo
g ; Isued Revision Do Dl FO2 332812181-5TH-HGN - XX -DE-TR-5517

Page | 25



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Holidays to allow unrestricted parking for
residents, when the nearby Surgery is closed.

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
1. Norcot Dulnan Close Request for double yellow lines on Dulnan Close | We propose to install new No Waiting At Any Time
to prevent dangerous and obstructive parking restrictions along both sides up to the car park area.
which has prevented waste collection vehicles
from accessing the area. Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5519-P03_Dulnan Close
2. Norcot Constitution Road | Request to remove the 2-hour restriction on Bank

We propose to modify the existing time restrictions
to exclude bank holidays.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5520-P01_Constitution Road

99 abed

Page | 26




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
B
PROPOSED NO WAITING AT |
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS RN
_| N
) .
& p
D
(@]
~
N
i
;
r
i 2 : 2 i = 3=m
S ot el 0 Lt o acae 12e0
ey o oo
Haotes: lssue Stafus Client/Project: Tile
LTRITES MOTL: The pomton of moy suiwing At or privais sewsn, Sy merice . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
s S et o Stantec | £&A Re adl n DU cios
g et k- iy drie i v S
e g e i st epmain g bt s | §1 FOR COORDINATION v -y ,
.l Borough Council
Working better with you
i T oet noed chove, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
u :' Usa of the documeant for any other _ F"D:ECT M. A2 Scae
gg - purpose s not permiSed. READING, UNTED KIMNGDOM 2532612181 1250
i - = Revizion Drowing Ne.
i Isued/Revision Fo3 332612181 -5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5517

Page | 27



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
éD
-
B
SIGNAGE CHANGE: T
EXISTING RESTRICTION MON - FRIDAY 9AM -
6PM 2 HOURS, NO RETURN WITHIN 2 HOURS.
PROPOSED MON - FRIDAY EXCEPT BANK by
— HOLIDAYS 9AM - 6PM 2 HOURS, NO RETURN
av) WITHIN 2 HOURS.
S .
@
(@]
m 1
1
A
H
i 2 i = = <2 som
§ | S s verrrmd) scas vsm
R s ety
;: Hotes: Issue Status Cliznt/Project: Titie
: il el apme ey oy sk ey g 4!' R d' PROPOSED TRQ LOCATICN
H I wprea— phed O wuch D=t o SpEeTNE may A be prewert bt ot CONSTTUTICN ROAD
: T g e e s it septin oyt s comirs | §1 FOR COORDINATION @ Sta ntec 1‘.&* B eah c Ir‘lg
v Kt Haan W o orough Counci
i1 Brctge
i e Working better with you
i e e 2| T WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20245 _
E Use of ths document for any other P'\}.ecfrlc. A2 Scae
3f pepcss & not parmmad. W READING, UNITED KINGDOM 52612181 1500
5§ Pon PEVENE = e o = e Revizion Drawing Ho.
g ; Issued/Revision & Appd  YTITMAMID Dvrr Dy FO1 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX -DE-TR-5520

Page | 28



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward

Street

Summary of Request

Officer recommendation

69 abed

1.

Park

Wokingham Road

Request to extend one of the existing loading
bays near the shops on 85-87 Wokingham Road
due to limited space, safety concerns, and
operational delays.

We propose to extend the existing loading bay
outside no 85 by converting and incorporating the
parking space outside no. 83.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5521-P01_Wokingham Road

Page | 29




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

0/ abed

7 g, TIACTR e g 8 1 g

. g T e

:
3
g
:
L)

Pl LB 0 50 TP

z 3 4
\ N
Ty @
L
p
Y
X,
PROPOSED EXTENSION OF i
EXISTING LOADING BAY k
3 : VL o

oo et e scae ras0

s ey ErcErS

Hotes: Issue Sigtus Client/Project: Titie

UTLITES HOTL: The powton of sy sdelng Sublic O privirs s, S5y mervices. ™ PROPOSED TRO LOCATION

ST s Stantec | £A Readin o e

e e ST TR | S1 FOR COORDINATION “ -y

prome-hely s RN .k Borough Council
v Working better with you
o rd o, ’ WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
User of this document for any other Project Ho. A2 Scake
putpose b5 not parmnma, READING, UNITED KNGDCMW 350412181 1:250

o P EOE = e s Revizion Dinzaing Ho.
Issued/Revision & Den g Fd1 332412181-5TH-HGN-X X -DR-TE-5521

Page | 30



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

holder only’ parking bays on the road as
residents are struggling to find spaces to park.

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
Redlands The Mount Request to reduce the length of a parking bay The waste collection team have confirmed that they
near the garaging area due to access challenges | have issues with access in the Mount. To help
faced by refuse trucks. improve access for the refuse vehicle we propose
to remove 1 car parking space (5 metres) at the end
of an existing bay.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5522-p03_The Mount
Redlands Malvern Court Request for a loading ban to curb parking by We propose to install a full time No Loading /
parents picking up children from the nearby Unloading At Any Time restriction along both sides,
school. from the junction with Addington Road down to the
car park area.
S
2 Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
~ TR-5523-P02_Malvern Court
o Redlands Watlington Street Request to increase the number of ‘permit We propose to remove some double yellow lines to

allow for 1 additional permit holder parking space
outside the Methodist Church Hall and another
permit holder space outside the Polish Catholic
Church, to increase the number of resident parking
on this road.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5524-P01_ Watlington Street

Redlands/Katesgrove

Northumberland
Avenue 2

Request for double yellow lines near the
roundabout due to issues caused by parked
vehicles during the school pick up/drop off
period.

We propose to install some new double yellow lines
and to convert a section of the existing single yellow
lines to double yellow lines. This will help prevent
issues caused by vehicles parking on this junction.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5516 - PO3_Northumberland Avenue 2

Page | 31




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
7%
B
b
EXISTING SHARED
PERMIT HOLDER [/
VISITOR PARKING BAY
N EXISTING SHARED
Y PERMIT HOLDER/
8 VISITOR PARKING BAYS
(¢} \
\'
N 4
PROPOSED REMOVAL OF ONE ,'-.
N PARKING SPACE TO IMPROVE
ACCESS FOR REFUSE
COLLECTION VEHICLES
g
i
:
; :II ? ‘P ‘:5 ;:D ?Em
HI = frin merioperps, e iy e — P '
I ey
;: Hates: lssue Status Clignt/Project: Tite
3 pho o appeeine o o vl e b et b st ey 4!. R d - PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
- m aprmmat or pled m-umnrlalpﬂwuran-_rbw_nnn:“-“ THE MIOUMT
FILNSTEESITTIENLTIII TSI | 51 FOR COORDINATION @ Sta ntec v% ea lng
i St i .k Borough Council
i % i Working better with you
1 e ’ WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 i i
EE e rorpea o ———— REACING, UNTED KNEDOM p;iT_;'|‘;‘] "f:;‘;‘:";
E i 0 e Resision Dincrving blo.
EE L Dagr FO3 332412181-5TN-HGN- XX -DR-TR-5522

Page | 32



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
M
B
.-,
PROPOSED NO LOADING /
UNLOADING AT ANY TIME
RESTRICTIONS TO BE ADDED -
TO EXISTING NO WAITING AT -
_ ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS
T
<)
Q
@D
\l
w
A
i
|
i
i
3 : m_ e = g
P | gt bttt sche 1250
E Crdrmnce: Surey 01 O3 67F
;:- Hiotes: lssue Status Client/Project: The
2 UTIITES NOTL: The poston of moy sousng ooblic or privirs smeen, <Sify mervices, . PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
| EEEEEEeEET Stantec | £% Readin
(]| S s e e i womea mysn s | §1 FOR COORDINATION -7 -y
i s i rons Borough Council
i e o e e e 73
i Working better with you
3 T natea s, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 , i
55 e ipcns Bt pamed. READING, UNITED KNGDOM Pr\:;]?;l;'] 'a?:';;e
' ; = (] i Revision Dirorwing Ho.
!; Issued/Revision Den  Du FoZ 332612181-5TN-HGMN- XX -DE-TE-5523

Page | 33



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
POTENTIAL REMOVAL OF \ @
DOUBLE YELLOW LINES TO T W,
ALLOW FOR 1 ADDITIONAL \ >
ON-STREET PARKING SPACE
B
0
QD
«Q
(9]
N
POTENTIAL REMOVAL QF
X DOUBLE YELLOW LINES TO
Y ALLOW FOR 1 ADDITIONAL
oA Ve ON-STREET PARKING SPACE
;
4
i 3 : VI o
I e e e scaE v
3 Crirmece faeep OAEIETS
;: Haotes: lssue Stafus Client/Project: Tite
e s i ol amt a iy o i 4!- R d . PROPCSED TRO LOTATION
H m apremmt or rrpled ou-umnrl:uw-wurnl-_a:::-ﬂnial-"“ WATUNGTOH STREET
1| FESESITIENLUERISASTEENT | 1 FOR COORDINATION @ Sta ntec w% B eah e Ir‘lg
i e man, Wisweman o oroug ounci
i -
4 it e Working better with you
i3 TSR | T WAITING RESTRICTICNS REVIEW 20248 _
F Usa of this docurment for any other Project Mo. AZIcak
ﬁ-'g purpose s not permiSed., W READING. UNTED KHGDOMW 23212181 1250
55 o ST S = B ey Rewision Diroraing Mo
:E Issued/Revision kA e O POl 332412181-5TN-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5524

Page | 34



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 4
N
. SECTION OF EXISTING
SINGLE YELLOW LINE TO
BE REMOVED
1
T
QD
% PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
~ ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS
a1
ia
i
H
!
T
E :II ? ‘P IIE o ?Ell‘
HI I iy merirrrs gty e aoaLe 1as
R e
;: Hotes: Issue Siafus Client/Project: Title:
i LT 30 T st g it e it e, il . ERPOSED THO LOGATION
| EEEsEEmaT e Stantec | £A Readin oo s
s g e v, et it vepmcein oy s tme s | 51 FOR COORDINATION v n
it .2 Borough Council
E Working better with you
i T pon roed b, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
wE Use of this document for any other F"D_ECT”G. A2 Scae
ﬁf purpose ks not permiSed. READING, UMITED KINGDOM 332619181 1250
52 ] it e Revision Drowing Ha.
3
g; Issued/Revision i FO3 332412181 -5TN-HGN-XX-DE-TR-5514

Page | 35



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation, including any Ward
Councillor Comments
1. Southcote Southcote Road Request for an extension of the existing double We propose to install some new No Waiting At Any

yellow lines on Southcote Road, as vehicles
parking on both sides of the road are blocking
traffic and limiting visibility for drivers.

Time restrictions on the east side of the road near
its junction with Bath Road. This will remove parking
spaces in the area, however, officers have
witnessed large vehicles parking here, causing
visibility issues for motorists entering/leaving the
area.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5525-P02 Southcote Road

9/ abed

2. Southcote

Penroath Avenue

Request for extension of existing double yellow
lines to prevent dangerous and obstructive
parking which has prevented waste collection
bins from accessing the area.

We propose to extend the existing No Waiting At
Any Time restriction on the south side to help with
the issues caused by obstructive parking in the
area.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5526-P02_Penroath Avenue

Page | 36




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

PROPOSED NO WAITING
AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION

B
>
«Q
(¢
~
~
A
i
!
i
!
7
H o 5 1o 15 ] 25m
i
i
H
: Hotes: Issue Status ClientProject: Title
3| e mecemty ey e ey . PROPCSED TEOLOGATION
i e xprva  eghat (P . P o AP ey s P n ec ea In SOUTHCOTE ROAD
Y e s v i e e ey s e | 81 FOR COORDINATION v
A ™7 Borough Council
I 2 s Working better with you
" Thie documaent ks suBabde only for e - oy . - -
LE perpose noted abave. WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 2024E
uE Usa of this documeent for any other P'D:ECT”G. A2 Scae
13 purpcse k not permiled. e — READING, UNITED KINGDOM zma12181 1250
s o :
i B e Revision Drawing Ho.
i |sueq/Revison Den O FO2 332612181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5525
H

Page | 37



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
N
B
0
& .
) PROPOSED EXTENSION OF
~ NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
oo RESTRICTION
N
2 H i i = 3=m
fr::::wmw;::‘::l::::ﬂn:il M.LN!:.-:nwl:ee; BCALE %:250
e e R T P et
Hates: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie:
UTIITIES NOTE: The poston of mey stwseg scbls or privars seser, S8y serice. - PROPCSED TRO LOCATION
ﬁ;%:'"g °?.': %Eﬂf:&:ﬂ.’: '"t;.::‘ 4!'* Readl n PEHROATH AVENUE
PLNSEEIITETITEIIITESEIIET | 81 FOR COORDINATION v -y !
..: Borough Council
i Working better with you
'3 e nofed v, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
u '— Use of th document for any other _ F"D:ECT“G. A2 Scae
gf purRcss & not permised. READING, UNITED HGDOM 232812181 1250
..-; P Rexision Dirwing Ho.
:; IsuedRevision Fa2 332412181-5TH-HGMN-XX-DR-TR-5528

Page | 38



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
1. Thames Elliotts Way Request to install a loading restriction near its We propose to install a No Loading / Unloading At
junction with Gosbrook Road due to issues Any Time restriction on both sides of the road from
caused by vehicles parking for the shops. its junction with Gosbrook Road past the side of no.
63.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5527-P02_Elliotts Way
2. Thames Orts Road Request to add a property on Orts Road to the We propose to add one additional property on Orts
existing permit zone 12R. Road to the existing permit zone 12R.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-

TR-5528-P01_Orts Road

6/ abed

Page | 39




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

z 3 F
N
i
) PROPOSED NO LOADING / UNLOADING
AT ANY TIME MARKINGS .
AV
h
0
QD
«Q
@
(o)
o
N
i
g
i
!
E o 1 1P 15 HIJ ?En'
1| e i soaLE 10
| e
;: rates: lssue Sratus Client/Project: Titie
§ | rarmeneote o p o sy g gt ot s, ey . ERROSED THO LOSATON
| eI Stantec | £&A Readin e
sf | EESEEITTENEIRTRETINTIINT| s FOR COORDINATION Viy .
it e L e A Borough Council
i Working better with you
i s rated o, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
e Use of this document for any other F"\G:ECT”\}. A2 Soae
i.ig purpcse i not permiSed. READING, UNITED KINGDCM 50612181 1250
u; oy PR Resision Drowing Ho.
g; IswediRevision PO2 $32512181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5527

Page | 40



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 b
N
B
S
Q REQUEST TO ADD A PROPERTY
(¢ OM ORTS ROAD TO THE
0] EXISTING PERMIT ZONE 12R.
=
N
i
T
H
2 H i iH b o
s e = P
é Crormnae Surey 01000187
5 Hotes: lssue Status Clisnt/Project: T
| e e e, - PROPOSED TR0 LOCATON
| | St Stantec | £&A Read| n oeTsRoA
3| FETSEEETEmITTIETITIITN | 51 FOR COORDINATION “fyl '
i T e Borough Council
i - Working better with you
H T e raed . B WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
Fl — Use of this document for any other B Project Ho. A2 Scale
gg pwpose s not permSed. READING, UNTED KOMNGDOM 33612181 1250
E; o T = = Revision Drowing Mo.
:; Izsued/Revision L L ol F0 332512181 -5TH-HGHN-XX -DR-TR-5528

Page | 41



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

double yellow lines on the north side of the road,
east of the car park. This is to provide some
additional parking for residents.

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
Tilehurst Park Lane Request for restrictions on Park Lane between Following the resent TRO rectification scheme, we
(between City City Road and the Water Tower due to regular now have a valid order for the verge and footway
Road and the parking causing traffic flow issues for both cars parking ban on Park Lane.
Water Tower) and buses.
We therefore recommend that this be removed from
the programme.
Tilehurst Dalton Close Request for double yellow lines at the junction of | We propose to install new No Waiting At Any Time
Dalton Close and Aylsham Close due to visibility | restrictions at the junction of Dalton Close and
issues caused by the unrestricted parking. Aylsham Close to prevent obstructions and improve
junction visibility.
Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5530-P01_Dalton Close
- Tilehurst Victoria Road Request for extension of existing double yellow We propose to extend the exiting No Waiting At Any
2 lines near its junction with Westwood Road due Time restrictions on both sides up to the rear of the
o to visibility issues caused by unrestricted parking. | buildings of no’s 58 and 66.
0
" Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5531-P02_Victoria Road
Tilehurst Recreation Road Request to remove a short section of the existing | We propose to remove a small section of double

yellow lines on the north east side of the road to
allow about 2 additional parking spaces.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5532-P02_Recreation Road

Page | 42




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

Z 3 4
N
8
PROPOSED NO WAITING AT | =
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS '
\
e
o))
«Q
(0]
(o0)
w
-
j
i
]
r
2 : 1 i = 3sm
T | Sl e, sons e
E Crdrmece Suney SO IETY
i Hiotes: lssue Status Clisnt/Project: Tite
UTLITES HOTL: The powbon of moy sdwing aublic o privrs sswenn, Sy senvioes. - PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
e T Stantec ‘m Re adl n Batrcn close
i el o e s iy dewaloy Lo e
e g e e tonn it g e s i | §1 FOR COORDINATION v-y ,
i e e e 27 Borough Council
i Working better with you
1 T e e e o WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
4= Use of this documant tor any other Project Mo, A2 IO
F:E prpoee k not permsed. READING, UNITED KIMNGDOM 32612181 1:250
E :
il = ) T T Ew Revision Drowing Ho.
g; |ssUed/Revision - [ L ara FO1 332612181-5TN-HGN-XX -DR-TR-5530

Page | 43



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 '
N
B
) PROPOSED EXTENSION OF
8 - NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
D RESTRICTIONS
(oe]
N
A
i
:
i
:
¥
3 ; B = =
T | et v, seas s
: Crcimecs furemy CTOQIHETS
;: Hates: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie
2 LTRITIS HOTE: The pesion of moy ssiwing abllc or prives s, oSy srvices, - PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
|| e e e e eyt Stantec ‘Z,'i\ Re adl n oA 208
3| EEESEENIITENISCIITEENNT | S1FOR COORDINATION W, -y .
i . ot Borough Council
i Working better with you
H o nood e, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
uE Use of this documeant for any other F"D:ECT“G. A2 ZCae
CH] purpose ks nof permiSed. READING, UMITED KIRGDOM 2612181 1250
E : L Revision Dinzaing Ho.
i |muedRevison P FO1 332512181 -5TH-HGHN-XX-DR-TR-5531

Page | 44



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
B
0
QD
«Q
D
o
rd
A
PROPOSED REMOVAL OF DOUBLE
i YELLOW LINES TO CREATE 2
i ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACES
!
¥
: : [ 5 am
| i me e scaLE 1m0
- oty ot i b
E Hates: lssue Status Client/Project: Te
: Fham r apmmts b acige Ebac e . P o g . PROPOSED TR0 LOTATICH
[ e e e i e Stantec ATA Read| N PesEEATON 204
PN R | 51 FOR COORDINATION ! -y .
it .k Borough Council
iz Working better with you
i T o oe a1 WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248 _
uE Usa of this document for any other Project Ho. AZlcae
ﬂj purpcse s not permisad, READING., UNITED KIMGDOM 352412181 1200
E : = : o Revision Drawing Ho.
H IsURd/Revision ] . Fol 332412181-5TH-HGN-XX-DR-TR-5532

Page | 45



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

98 abed

Ward Street Summary of Request Officer recommendation
1. Whitley Whitley Wood Request for double yellow lines for the section The installation of yellow lines along this section will
Lane just after the old Smith’s Cycle Shop on Whitley remove a number of parking spaces for residents
Wood Lane, approximately outside property and their visitors at all times. It could also cause
number No 132 down to property No 74 due to displacement issues caused by vehicles parking
issues caused by vehicles parking on match further up the road.
days.
We therefore recommend that this be removed from
the programme.
2. Whitley Mortimer Close Request for waiting restrictions in Mortimer close | We propose to install some double yellow lines and
to prevent dangerous and obstructive parking a ‘Keep Clear’ marking at the end to prevent
that affects accessibility. Concerns have been obstruction to access by emergency vehicles.
raised regarding access for emergency service
vehicles. Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5534-P02_Mortimer Close
3. Whitley Falmouth Road Deferred from the 2024A programme. Request to | We propose to extend the existing No Waiting At

extend the existing yellow lines at its junction
with Whitley Wood Lane to alleviate issues
caused by vehicles parking, which are said to
cause a hazard and damage the verge

Any Time restriction on the southside up to the
boundary between no. 237 Whitley Wood Lane and
no. 2 Falmouth Close.

Please see drawing 332612181-STN-HGN-XX-DR-
TR-5535-P01_Falmouth Road.

Page | 46




Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

T 3 r
N
PROPOSED NO WAITING
AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION
]
G PROPOSED
5 % KEEP CLEAR
MARKING
T
QD
«Q
D
e}
\l
R
1
!
:
T
3 : i i =2 7=
Rl i e s At B
P e
: Hohes: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie
UTLITIES KOTE The powiion of mey edwing public or privaris sewers, Sy serice, [ ] PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
SR Ument Stantec | £&% Readin
| SEmEEIIIIIITOIITIEETET | $1FOR COORDINATION “ -y |
it o e R 73 Borough Council
i Working better with you
L o pons rafod e, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 2024B i
u : Usa of this documant for any othar _ p'ﬂ_ECT Mo, A2icae
E* pusposs k& nofpermimss. READING, UNTED KNGDOM 332612181 1250
EH — Revison Drowing No.
g; Issued/Revision FO2 332412181-5TN-HGN- XX -DR-TR-5534

Page | 47



Appendix 1: Waiting Restriction Review Programme 2024B — Recommendation Report

2 3 4
N
B
0
Q
«Q
@ \
o) h
o]
PROPOSED NO WAITING
N AT ANY TIME RESTRICTION
i
i
1 T S N S
| oo s is. tetosivotn, sous 1
- ol
i Hotes: Issue Status Client/Project: Titie
2 UTILITES HOTL: The poston of moy sdusng Sublc or privirs sswers, <5y mervices, ] PROPOSED TRO LOCATION
| | et Stantec | £% Readin FAMTH 70D
: e oty ae v, oo i o spvin g v st e |51 FOR COORDINATION ﬁ'y
T Borough Council
i: Working better with you
i T o ratod o, WAITING RESTRICTIONS REVIEW 20248
3= Usar of this dacumant for any other Profect b, A2 Icae
;_'3 purpose k& not penmSed. READING, UNITED KIMGDOM 50612181 1:250
E -
;; i TR - Revision Dngwing Ho.
i \sued/Revizon :. Fol 332412181-5TH-HGN-KX-DE-TR-5535

Page | 48



Agenda Item 8

'cl;lrrf:ir::'ilt\f::agement Sub- ‘v!'jﬁy Reading

Borough Council

11 September 2025 Working better with you

Title

Traffic Regulation Order Rectification - Update

Purpose of the report To note the report for information

Report status Public report

Executive Director/
Statutory Officer
Commissioning Report

Emma Gee, Executive Director Economic Growth and
Neighbourhood Services

Report author James Penman, Network Services Manager

Lead Councillor Clir John Ennis, Lead Councillor for Climate Strategy and Transport

Council priority

Deliver a sustainable & healthy environment & reduce Reading's
carbon footprint

Recommendations

1. That the Sub-Committee notes the content of this report.
2. That no public inquiry be held into the proposals.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Executive Summary

At Council on 15 October 2024, a summary of issues relating to certain Traffic
Regulation Orders (TROs) was reported (report available here) and a rectification
process agreed (report available here). The agreed rectification process involves
advertising new, permanent TROs to address the issues identified on these TROs.
Officer delegation for considering objections and making TRO implementation — or
otherwise — decisions was also approved by Council.

This is a continuation of a series of update reports, starting from November 2024, that
will inform this Sub-Committee of progress and decision making against these TROs.

Council agreed to an Action Plan that was proposed by officers to address the issues
that led to some of these errors, to mitigate the risks or recurrence and to provide
assurance that processes were in place to address any further TRO issues that may
arise.

This report informs the Sub-Committee that the statutory consultation agreed at the
meeting in June 2025 (report available here) for rectifying TRO issues discovered within
the Town Centre Red Route order has been undertaken. No objections have been
received, so as per the decisions made at that meeting, the TRO will be made.

This report also highlights an issue discovered, and since rectified, with non-compliant
yellow-line restrictions on Durham Close.

Policy Context

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) sets out the legal basis for making TROs.
It gives local authorities the power to make TROs to regulate or restrict traffic as needed
for:

(a) avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any other road or
for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, or

(b) preventing damage to the read or {n.any building on or near the road, or
%age



https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14435
https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14462
https://democracy.reading.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=16155

2.2.

2.3.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

(c) facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any class of traffic
(including pedestrians), or

(d) preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic of a kind which, or its use by
vehicular traffic in a manner which, is unsuitable having regard to the existing
character of the road or adjoining property, or

(e) preserving the character of the road in a case where it is especially suitable for
use by persons on horseback or on foot, or

(f) preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the road runs
or

(9) any of the purposes specified in paragraphs (a) to (c) of subsection (1) of
section 87 of the Environment Act 1995

Reading Borough Council’s Transport Strategy 2024 is a statutory document that sets
the plan for developing the Borough'’s transport network. It includes guiding policies and
principles including those related to Network Management (RTS17), Parking (RTS20),
Enforcement (RTS21) and Demand Management (RTS22). Reference to the Borough’s
Red Route is contained within this strategy.

The Council Plan for the years 2025/28 includes priorities of delivering a sustainable
and healthy environment and to reduce our carbon footprint, which align closely with the
provisions of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA), as both seek to improve
public wellbeing and sustainable development.

The Proposal
Current Position

Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are legal orders, which allow the Highway Authority to
regulate the speed (Speed Limit Orders), movement and parking of vehicles and enable
the compliant signing, lining and enforcement of restrictions on our highways. They can
cover a variety of different restrictions, including those related to waiting and loading,
residential parking restrictions, speed limits and bus lanes implementation for example.

TROs contain textual information about the nature of the restrictions, how they operate
and are enforced and the exact location descriptions for where they apply.

The majority of the Borough’s TROs are intended to lead to permanent changes. In this
situation, the Council undertakes a minimum 21-day statutory consultation process,
whereby objections to the draft TRO can be submitted. Following consideration of the
objections, the Council may still decide to implement the changes, and the draft TRO is
made permanent with an implementation date that aligns with the implementation date
of the restrictions on street.

The statutory consultation process requires the Council to advertise notices — a
simplified version of the TRO — in local newspaper publications, to place copies of the
notices on street and make the full draft TRO, relevant plans and statement of reasons
available for public inspection as a minimum.

An internal investigation, the results of which were reported to Council in October 2024,
identified that a number of historic Traffic Regulation Orders within the Borough were
incorrectly made. As a result, there are restrictions presented on the Highway that
cannot be enforced.

The following table details the TROs affected, as reported to Council in 2024
Table 1

Item Issue

TRO 1 Location:

Page 90



(Red Route
East)

Red Route East, including Kings Road from its junction with Watlington Street
to Cemetery Junction, Wokingham Road and partially into adjoining streets
such as Queens Road and London Road.

Issue:

The experimental TRO came into operation on 15 January 2018, but only for
a period of 6 months. The experimental TRO expired and was not made
permanent.

Subsequent TROs were implemented to cover later pay and display
restrictions outside the Wokingham Road shops, and further ‘shared-use’ pay
& display / resident permit parking restrictions also along Wokingham Road.
These are not affected by the issue.

The West and Town Centre Red Route TROs are correctly in operation and
are not impacted by this issue.

Resolution:

A new TRO is required for the restrictions on the original, expired
experimental TRO that are not covered by the subsequent TROs and
presented on street. These are predominantly ‘No stopping at any time’ along
the route.

TRO 2

(Swainstone /

Location:
Waldeck Street Resident Permit Parking and Swainstone Road Resident
Permit Parking scheme.

Waldeck)
Issue:
The consulted TRO was due to come into operation from 1 March 2016, but
was not sealed and made (to legally come into operation).
A subsequent TRO was introduced from 29 September 2021, which covers
the restrictions within Waldeck Street, following changes introduced through a
Waiting Restriction Review programme. Therefore, Waldeck Street is no
longer considered to be affected by this issue.
Resolution:
A new TRO is required to cover the restrictions on Swainstone Road as per
the original TRO and presentation on street. These are predominantly
resident permit parking bay restrictions.

TRO 3 [The references used in this table reflect those used in other reports on this
issue for consistency. However, while this TRO has formed part of the
investigation it was not considered to require rectification and is not relevant
to this report.]

TRO 4 Location:

Western section of the Red Route in its entirety.

(Red Route

West) Issue:

The citation (reference within the order to the title of that order) has been
incorrectly written. While the error is not material to enforcement, this issue
will be rectified.

Resolution:

A new TRO is required to rectify this issue.

TRO 5 Location:

‘Southcote’ Verge and Footway Parking ban area, including the whole lengths

(Southcote of Southcote Lane, Ashampstead Road, Brunel Road, Circuit Lane, Frilsham

Verge & Road, Gainsborough Road and Virginia Way.

Footway)

Issue:

The experimental TRO came into operation on 9 February 2015, but only for
a period of 6 months. The experimental TRO expired and was not made
permanent.

Page 91




Resolution: A new TRO is required to cover the restrictions in the expired
experimental TRO and presented on street, namely to cover the ban on
footway and verge parking.

TRO 6

(Tilehurst &
Kentwood
Verge &
Footway)

Location:

‘Tilehurst and Kentwood’ Verge and Footway Parking ban area, including
Church End Lane, Lower Elmstone Drive, Norcot Road, Oak Tree Road,
Overdown Road, Park Lane, Recreation Road, School Road, The Meadway
and Westwood Road. This list was corrected to remove Mayfair, which
following reference made at Council in October 2024, had been agreed for
removal from the resultant scheme by Traffic Management Sub-Committee in
November 2014.

Issue:

The experimental TRO came into operation on 7 May 2013, but only for a
period of 6 months. The experimental TRO expired and was not made
permanent

Resolution:

A new TRO is required to cover the restrictions in the expired experimental
TRO and presented on street, namely, to cover the ban on footway and verge
parking. This will exclude Mayfair, following a decision at Traffic Management
Sub-Committee in November 2014, agreeing to its removal from the resultant
TRO.

TRO 7

(London
Road)

Location:
London Road, resident permit parking bays on the north side of the street,
either side of the junction with East Street.

Issue:

The section of the TRO containing the ‘no waiting’ and ‘no loading’ restriction
along the north side of London Road contained an incorrect location
description, which causes it to overlap with the resident permit parking bay
restrictions.

This issue was originally contained in a TRO that came into operation on 23
February 2007 and was replicated in a later TRO that came into operation on
23 March 2015.

Resolution:

Requires a new TRO to replace the problematic elements from the
abovementioned TROs with the correct restrictions, as presented on street.
This will correctly capture the resident permit parking bays and the ‘no
waiting’ and ‘no loading’ restrictions without overlap of the two.

TRO 8

(Hosier Street
& St Marys
Butts)

Location:

Issue 1 - Hosier Street, north and south sides

Issue 2 - St Marys Butts east side shared-use taxi/disabled badge holder
parking bays, to the south of the junction with Broad Street/West Street.

Issuet:

Incorrect description for the parking restrictions referred to the restriction
spanning from its junction with St Marys Butts ...to a point 20m east of that
junction’, when it should have read “...to a point 20m west of that junction’.

This issue was originally contained in a TRO that came into operation on 3
March 2003 and was replicated in the later Town Centre Red Route TRO that
came into operation on 5 November 2021.

Resolution:

Requires a new TRO to replace the problematic elements from the
abovementioned TROs with the correct restrictions, as presented on street.
This will correctly capture the ‘no stopping at any time’ restrictions on
approach to the junction with St Marys Butts.

Issue 2:
There are discrepancies in the permitted times for disabled badge parking
between different areas of the TRO (e.g. Article 16 (b) 8am to 5pm) and the

Page 92




signing in place (5am to 8pm). The intension of Red Route was to translate
previous restrictions into Red Route restrictions as best as possible, so it is
considered that 5am to 8pm (as signed) is the appropriate restriction and that
the incorrect TRO elements should be amended to reflect this.

Resolution:
Amend the incorrect elements of the TRO to reflect the disabled badge holder
parking being permitted between 5am and 8pm.

TRO9

(A33 bus
lanes)

Location:

A33 bus lane, southbound sections between Bennet Road and the M4
Junction 11 gyratory, and the northbound section between Imperial Way and
South Oak Way.

Issue:

A section of the TRO provides incorrect exemptions for cyclists, motor cyclists
and hackney carriage vehicles, in conflict with the other descriptions within
the TRO, the bus lane signage and originally approved intentions of
Committee.

The TRO came into operation on 1 December 2017.
Resolution:

A new TRO is required to replace the problematic elements from the
abovementioned TRO with the correct exemptions.

TRO 10

(Redlands
Road)

Location:
Redlands Road, east side, 50m length of waiting and loading restriction either
side of its junction with Morgan Road.

Issue:
The TRO contains incorrect measurements for a waiting (parking) and loading
restriction, leaving this abovementioned section without a valid TRO in place.

Resolution:

A new TRO is required to replace the problematic elements from the
abovementioned TRO with the correct restrictions, as presented on street.
This will correctly capture the length of ‘no waiting’ and ‘no loading’ restriction.

3.7. To ensure that the restrictions presented on street in the table above are compliant with
national signing regulations (the Traffic Signs, Regulations and General Directions
(TSRGD) and that they are enforceable, valid TROs need to be in place.

3.8. The consultation process is a regulatory process, and officers will follow a standard
approach for each TRO as follows:

o They will be ‘hosted’ within the consultation area of the Council’s website (here),
with introduction text, copies of the drawings, legal notice, draft TRO and any other
documentation required by regulation. There will be a form for submitting a

response.

¢ There will be an appropriate and proportionate number of legal notices erected on
street. These will be on white weatherproof A4 paper, will contain the written
restrictions and provide reference to the consultation page on our website.

¢ The content of these legal notices must be published in a locally printed and
distributed newspaper as part of the regulatory process.

3.9.

e The consultations will run for 21 days each, the only exception being in the unlikely

situation that any run into the festive period, where it may be appropriate to extend
the duration. Officers are expecting to avoid running consultations over this period.

The launch of the statutory consultations has been staggered, and the following table
shows the progress of each TRO through the rectification project. This table will be
updated for future Sub-Committee meetings until the processes are concluded for all
effected TROs.

Page 93


https://reading.govocal.com/en-GB/

Members are asked to note that the timelines below may be subject to change and will
be influenced by the feedback received during statutory consultation. For the purposes
of this report, and unless specifically referred, the table has assumed that there will be
no objections received and a decision taken to implement (make) the resultant TROs.

Table 2
Item Progress (Indicative Key Milestones. Subject to
Change)
TRO 1 Process complete.

(Red Route East)

Minor amendments to drawings 7 and 8 agreed by
delegations (delegations agreed at Council, October 2024).
These included some additional bay-marked restrictions
that were not captured on the original drawings to Council
in October 2024.

Statutory consultation completed and no objections were
received. TRO was made on 3 February 2025.

TRO 2

(Swainstone / Waldeck)

Process complete.

Statutory consultation completed and no objections were
received. TRO was made on 23 April 2025

TRO 3

Not Applicable.

TRO 4

(Red Route West)

Process complete.

Rectified by statutory notice advertised on 4 September
2025 and made on 11 September 2025.

TRO §

(Southcote Verge &
Footway)

Process complete.

Minor amendment to drawing agreed by delegation
(delegations agreed at Council, October 2024). The
southern section of Circuit Lane was not captured on the
original drawings to Council in October 2024.

Statutory consultation completed and an objection was
received and considered. Decision made to implement as
advertised and TRO was made on 23 April 2025.

TRO 6

(Tilehurst & Kentwood
Verge & Footway)

Process complete.

Statutory consultation complete and objections were
received and considered. Decision made to implement as
advertised and TRO was made on 23 April 2025.

TRO 7

(London Road)

Process complete.

Statutory consultation complete and an objection was
received and has been considered. Decision made to
implement as advertised and TRO was made on 28 May
2025.

TRO 8

(Hosier Street & St Marys
Butts)

Process complete.

Statutory consultation completed and no objections were
received. TRO was made on 23 April 2025

TRO 9

(A33 bus lanes)

Process complete.

Statutory consultation completed and no objections were
received. TRO was made on 23 April 2025

Page 94




3.10.

3.11.

TRO 10 Process complete.

(Redlands Road) Statutory consultation completed and no objections were
received. TRO was made on 23 April 2025

Enforcement commenced following the making of each TRO and a two-week period of
warning notices being issued, as applicable. As part of the rectification scheme, officers
have also been identifying areas where signing and lining relating to these restrictions
requires improvement and have been actioning any required changes.

New TRO Issues

Part of the Action Plan agreed at Council in October 2024, and monitored through Audit
and Governance Committee, included a commitment to establishing a process of raising
and addressing any further issues that may be discovered with other TROs. While the
Digital TRO Project (referred later in this report) is expected to mitigate the risks of TRO
issues, there will be instances where issues are found with existing orders and that
there should be a more ‘business as usual’ process for addressing these as they arise.

Officers have discovered further issues for which enforcement has ceased, as follow:
a. London Street southbound bus lane (reported June 2025)

Issue

The TRO for this lane was consulted and made as a bus only lane, but it was
installed with incorrect signing that identified it as a lane available to buses, taxis
(hackney carriage vehicles) and cyclists (see Appendix 1).

Recommendation (agreed June 2025)

It was recommended that a statutory consultation be undertaken to propose an
amendment to the Order to reflect the restriction as presented on street, namely
to allow taxis (hackney carriage vehicles) and cyclists to use the lane in addition
to buses.

This safeguarding of the restrictions that already appear on street, without
amendment to the presented restrictions, aligns with the principle applied to the
original TRO issues reported to Council. Operationally, the lane appears to have
functioned adequately with this access since it was installed.

Progress

The consultation commenced on 21 August and ends on 11 September. The
consultation feedback will be reported to the Sub-Committee meeting in
November 2025 so that a decision can be taken regarding implementation, or
otherwise, of the proposed restrictions.

b. Town Centre Red Route, various ‘split-use’ bays

Issue

Applies to a number of bays that have different restrictions in the daytime and
overnight (see Appendix 2), such as daytime disabled parking and overnight taxi
waiting.

While the lining, signing and TRO schedule titles of these bays reflects the
intensions of the scheme, there have been errors identified within the TRO
articles, whereby references the incorrect operational times within a few of these
bays.

Recommendation (agreed June 2025)

Page 95



3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

It was recommended that a statutory consultation be undertaken to propose an
amendment to the articles in the original TRO, correcting the am/pm typos.

Progress

The statutory consultation for the proposed TRO amendments was undertaken
between 10 July and 1 August 2025. No objections were received, so as per the
agreements of June 2025 Traffic Management Sub-Committee, officers are
proceeding with the making of this TRO, which is expected late summer.

c. Durham Close, double-yellow-lines

Issue

A section of Durham Close was found to have double-yellow-lines in place that
were not covered by a TRO. It is suspected that these long-standing markings
were in place in an advisory capacity before the section of road was adopted as
Highway, but remained in place.

Resolution

Enforcement was immediately ceased and the lines have been removed,
following discussion with Ward Councillors regarding their necessity.

Options Considered
Not applicable - there are no new actions nor recommendations arising from this report.
Digital TRO Project Update

Linked to the reports regarding the TRO issues identified, officers reported to Council in
October 2024 an update on a project to move to a digitised, map-based TRO
management system.

The intention of the overall project is to introduce a software package that enables map-
based locating of restrictions, management of TROs and interrogation of TROs. It is
intended that the substantive part of this project would be to capture the restrictions as
shown on street (the ‘ground-truth’) and create three new themed Boroughwide TROs
within the system - waiting restrictions, movement restrictions and speed restrictions
(Speed Limit Orders) respectively.

The primary advantages of such a system include:
e Mitigating risks of accuracy/compliance and variance of interpretation in TROs;

o Expediting the TRO consolidation processes, leading to fewer TROs being
‘active’ within the Borough;

e Compliance with forthcoming regulations requiring submission of new TRO (and
Temporary TRO) data to the government; and

e Ease of access to information, internally and externally, through provision of an
interactive map-based tool available on our website.

We are awaiting the outcome of a recent Government consultation regarding the
potential implementation of their new regulations. We anticipate this being in early 2026.
This incoming legislation continues to inform the delivery order/priority of this overall
project.

The software supplier providing the TRO management suite has been appointed and
officers are now in the early stages of onboarding, process and delivery mapping.

Development of this project is being monitored via the Council’s Customer Experience
Board, with additional reporting to the Transformation and Efficiency Board, and
progress is being reported to the Audit and Governance Committee as part of the wider
‘Action Plan’ remit of that Committee.

Page 96



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

5.2.

Sub-Committee members will be updated once dates for key initial project milestones
have been agreed with the supplier.

Contribution to Strategic Aims

The Council Plan has established five priorities for the years 2025/28. These priorities
are:

Promote more equal communities in Reading

Secure Reading’s economic and cultural success

Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint
Safeguard and support the health and wellbeing of Reading’s adults and children
Ensure Reading Borough Council is fit for the future

In delivering these priorities, we will be guided by the following set of principles:

Putting residents first

Building on strong foundations

Recognising, respecting, and nurturing all our diverse communities
Involving, collaborating, and empowering residents

Being proudly ambitious for Reading

Full details of the Council Plan and the projects which will deliver these priorities are
published on the Council’'s website - Council plan - Reading Borough Council. These
priorities and the Council Plan demonstrate how the Council meets its legal obligation to
be efficient, effective and economical.

The recommendations in this report align with the Council’s priorities, namely:
Deliver a sustainable and healthy environment and reduce our carbon footprint

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 enables the Council to introduce measures like
speed limits, one way systems, bus lanes, or restrictions on certain vehicles. These
provisions directly support reducing pollution, improving air quality and creating spaces
where people feel the benefits of clean air and active travel like walking and cycling.

By implementing TROs, the Council can create more green spaces and pedestrian
friendly areas, aligning with its goal of promoting a healthy environment which has a
positive impact on the life of every resident — making Reading a greener, more attractive
place to live, with a tangible impact on physical and mental health and life expectancy.

These actions also support accessibility and mobility, which are key to thriving,
connected communities, ensuring everyone including the vulnerable and excluded can
safely use public spaces, regardless of age or ability.

By managing traffic to reduce congestion and improve public transport flow, the Council
can boost local economic activities and make it easier for everyone to access education,
skills and training and good jobs.

The recommendations of this report relate to restrictions that directly benefit the flow of
public transport and cycling, in addition to facilitating parking/stopping management of
public transport providers and blue badge holders parking within the town centre.

Environmental and Climate Implications

The Council declared a Climate Emergency at its meeting on 26 February 2019 (Minute
48 refers).

A climate impact assessment has not been considered necessary for the
recommendations in this report. If agreed, and the consulted draft TROs made
permanent, there will be no expected changes to on street signing or lining — the
recommendations do not seek to change the restrictions from how they are currently

Page 97


https://www.reading.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/

6.2.

7.2.

8.1.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

presented — and there will be negligible negative impact from the creation of some
weatherproof on street notices required during the initial consultation period.

Community Engagement

The recommendations of this report do not seek to alter the restrictions from how they
are presented on street. The draft TROs will be advertised in compliance with statutory
regulations and an opportunity provided for objections to be made.

Engagement with those who may have been negatively impacted by the highlighted
issues has been reported to Council and is being addressed separately. Progress is
also being monitored through reports to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Equality Implications

Under the Equality Act 2010, Section 149, a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to -

e eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

It is not considered that an Equality Impact Assessment is relevant as the
recommendations of this report to not seek to change any restriction from what is
currently presented on street and, therefore, are not expected to have a less favourable
outcome to any persons with protected characteristics.

Other Relevant Considerations
There are none.
Legal Implications

The Council has considered all of its legal obligations when seeking to make Traffic
Regulation Orders.

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 sets out the legal basis for making TROs. The
Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996
provides for the statutory processes to be followed in making TROs.

Before making a TRO, the local authority must carry out a statutory consultation,
engaging with the Chief of Police, residents, businesses, emergency services and
transport operators. A notice detailing the proposed restrictions and the reasoning
behind them is published in a local newspaper and displayed on site in the areas where
the restrictions would apply. Members of the public have 21 days in which to submit
objections or comments on the proposal. In order for any comments to be valid, it must
be in writing, state the grounds on which it is made and sent to the address specified in
the notice.

With any traffic regulation order proposals, the Council (either via delegated authority, or
by agreement of the Traffic Management Sub-Committee) may decide whether to
proceed with the TRO as published, modify it, or abandon it. If it is agreed to proceed,
the TRO is formally made and a further notice is published giving the date when the
order comes into force. The final step is to implement the restrictions by installing the
necessary signage and road markings.

The Council has considered its Network Management Duty under the Traffic
Management Act 2004 and its Section 122 duty under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984.

Page 98



9.5.

9.6.

9.7.
9.8.

9.9.
10.
10.1.

10.2.

Network Management Duty

Part 2 Section 16 (1) of The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a duty on the Council
as a local traffic authority to manage their road network with a view to achieving, so far
as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other obligations, policies and

objectives, the following objectives—

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority's road network; and

(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which another
authority is the traffic authority.

(2) The action which the authority may take in performing that duty includes, in
particular, any action which they consider will contribute to securing—

(a) the more efficient use of their road network; or

(b) the avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or other disruption to the
movement of traffic on their road network or a road network for which another authority
is the traffic authority;

and may involve the exercise of any power to regulate or co-ordinate the uses made of
any road (or part of a road) in the road network (whether or not the power was conferred
on them in their capacity as a traffic authority). This duty places an ongoing obligation in
ensuring overall traffic efficiency and network performance and not only applies to
vehicles but all to pedestrians and cyclists.

Section 122 duty

Further Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 places a duty on the local
authority so far as practicable to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. In carrying out this exercise the
Council must have regard to the following:

o Desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises.

e The effect on the amenities of any locality effected and (without prejudice to the
generality of this paragraph) the importance of regulating and restricting the use of
roads by heavy commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the amenities of
the areas through which the road(s) run.

e The strategy prepared under Section 80 of the Environment Act 1995 (the national
air quality strategy).

o The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of securing
the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such vehicles.

e Any other matters appearing to the local authority to be relevant.

This duty focuses on the making of individual traffic regulation decisions.

Each of these duties has been considered in detail in relation to the schemes identified
in this report.

Patricia Tavernier has cleared these Legal Implications.
Financial Implications

The cost of undertaking the agreed TRO rectification processes is expected to be
limited to internal staffing resources, the advertising costs for the statutory notices
(consultation and sealing). This is estimated to total less than £10,000.

In addition to the implications referred in Section 10.1, the restrictions referred in this

report are currently unenforceable. While the objective of the restrictions is to prevent

the issues that were occurring previously and/or prevent unauthorised access to parts of

the Highway, contraventions do occur and these generate revenue that is invested as

per the Council’s Annual Parking Reports. Additionally, many of the schemes including
Page 99



10.3.

10.4.

10.5

10.6
1.

parking restrictions help to minimise accelerated damage to the Highway occurring
through, for example, parking on the footway and verges. These mitigations reduce the
burden on the Council’'s Highway Maintenance budgets.

Capital Implications
None expected.
Value for Money (VFM)

The recommendations contained in the report to Council represent the lowest
expenditure option to ensure compliance between the on-street restrictions and
underlaying TROs.

Risk Assessment

There are financial risks associated with the implementation decisions for any proposed
TRO that receives objections. Where a decision is taken not to proceed with the making
of a TRO, the restrictions on street would need to be altered to reflect those in the most
recent compliant TRO, or may need to be removed altogether. These changes could
include signing and lining replacement/alterations across potentially large areas.

Andy Stockle has cleared these Financial Implications.
Timetable for Implementation
The following tables provide the intended timeline:

Table 1 (Items identified in Section 3.6)

Line | Milestone When

1 Site surveys and drawing preparation Complete

2 Draft schedule of restrictions to be included in Complete
the TROs
Draft articles to be included in the TROs Complete
Undertake statutory consultation (requires Complete

release of approved Council meeting minutes
approving the undertaking proposals)

5.1 Make the TROs that have not received Complete
objection

5.2 | Seek decisions on making TROs that have Complete
received objections

6 Make the TROs (as appropriate) that have Complete
received objections, following delegated
decision.

Table 2 (Items identified in Section 3.11)

Line | Milestone When

1 Site surveys and drawing preparation Complete

2 Draft schedule of restrictions to be included in Complete
the TROs

3 Draft articles to be included in the TROs Complete

Page 100



objection

4 Undertake statutory consultation (requires In progress
release of approved Council meeting minutes
approving the undertaking proposals)

5.1 Make the TROs that have not received In progress

5.2 | Seek decisions on making TROs that have
received objections

Expected September and
November 2025 TMSC
meetings.

6 Make the TROs (as appropriate) that have
received objections, following Traffic
Management Sub-Committee decision.

Expected by January 2026

12. Background Papers

12.1. There are none.

Appendices —

1. Drawing to highlight the location of the London Street bus lane, referred in Section 3.11.

2. Drawing to highlight the locations of the town centre red route parking bays, referred in
Section 3.11.

Page 101




Appendix 1 — London Street Southbound Bus Lane

i

v E‘xristing: Bus Only Léne

e - -

Proposed: Bus, Cycles and
Taxis  Only

&

Civic Offices

Borough Council ‘
Reading
Working better with you RG12LU

Readi
ea I ng Highways & Traffic Services

Project

London St Bus Lane

Scﬁle'l' 3 Drawn IB
London St Bus Lane ~ " [orecked T
Amendment Date = 5
MAY 25 |"PPYEC P
Drawing Drawing No.

London St Bus Lane

Page 102




Appendix 2 — Town Centre Red Route

€0T abed

tﬁ ° Project Drawn B
ea I n Highways & Traffic Services TRO Rectification = Checked  gp
vj £ Civic Offices : Approved  p
, Borough Council Reading i Brawing No.
5 B RG1 2LU TRO_Town Centre Red Route (b)
Worklng better Wlth you TRO_Tewn Centre Red Route (b)




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous Meeting
	3 Previous Decisions
	query (16)

	5(a) Petition Receipt & Response - Last Crumb Junction
	6 Petition Response - Wokingham Road Pedestrian Crossing
	7 Waiting Restriction Review Programme
	Appendix 1

	8 Traffic Regulation Order Rectification - Update
	10 Applications for Discretionary Parking Permits
	Cases 1 - 4


